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OMB No 1545-0047

2013

Open to Public

|efile GRAPHIC print - DO NOT PROCESS | As Filed Data - |

990 Return of Organization Exempt From Income Tax
Form
.3

Under section 501(c), 527, or 4947(a)(1) of the Internal Revenue Code (except private
Department of the Treasury

foundations)
Intemal Revenue Service

B Do not enter Social Security numbers on this form as 1t may be made public By law, the IRS
generally cannot redact the information on the form
Bk Information about Form 990 and its instructions i1s at www.IRS.gov/form990

Inspection

A For the 2013 calendar year, or tax year beginning 10-01-2013 , 2013, and ending_j 09-30-2014

C Name of organization
CRAIG HOSPITAL

B Check If applicable D Employer identification number

I_Addresschange 84-0404233

Doing Business As
|_ Name change

I_ Intial return Number and street (or P O box if mail i1s not delivered to street address)| Room/suite

E Telephone number
3425 S CLARKSON STREET

|_ Terminated

(303)789-8000

I_ Amended return City or town, state or province, country, and ZIP or foreign postal code
ENGLEWOOD, CO 80113

I~ Application pending G Gross receipts $ 161,959,439

F Name and address of principal officer H(a) Is this a group return for

MICHAEL FORDYCE subordinates? [T Yes ¥ No
3425 S CLARKSON ST
ENGLEWOOD,CO 80113 H(b) Are all subordinates [~ Yes[ No

included?
If "No," attach a list (see Instructions)

I Tax-exemptstatus [ 501(c)(3) [ 501(c) ( ) M(nsertno) [ 4947(a)(1)or [ 527

J Website: » WWW CRAIGHOSPITAL ORG H(c) Group exemption number &

K Form of organization |7 Corporation |_ Trust |_ Association |_ Other = L Year of formation 1910 M State of legal domicile CO

m Summary
1 Briefly describe the organization’s mission or most significant activities
SEE SCHEDULE O
g
=
§ 2 Check this box M If the organization discontinued its operations or disposed of more than 25% of its net assets
3
w5 3 Number of voting members of the governing body (Part VI, line 1a) 3 18
E 4 Number of Independent voting members of the governing body (Part VI, linelb) . . . . . 4 17
E 5 Total number of Individuals employed in calendar year 2013 (Part V, line 2a) 5 948
E 6 Total number of volunteers (estimate If necessary) 6 200
7aTotal unrelated business revenue from Part VIII, column (C),line12 . . . . . . . . 7a 0
b Net unrelated business taxable income from Form 990-T,line34 . . . . . . .+ . . 7b 0
Prior Year Current Year
8 Contributions and grants (Part VIII, line 1h) 13,289,772 13,636,365
% 9 Program service revenue (Part VIII, line 2g) 76,528,166 81,479,337
% 10 Investment income (Part VIII, column (A), ines 3,4, and 7d ) 1,556,700 1,811,753
= 11 Other revenue (Part VIII, column (A), ines 5,6d, 8¢, 9c, 10c,and 11e) 1,731,478 1,935,912
12 Total revenue—add lines 8 through 11 (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line
12) 93,106,116 98,863,367
13 Grants and similar amounts paid (Part IX, column (A), lines 1-3) 100,908 109,325
14 Benefits paid to or for members (Part IX, column (A), line 4) 0 0
15 Salaries, other compensation, employee benefits (Part IX, column (A), lines
$ 5-10) 45,471,800 48,514,420
% 16a Professional fundraising fees (Part IX, column (A), line 11e) 0 0
E b Total fundraising expenses (Part IX, column (D), line 25) (Y
17 Other expenses (PartIX, column (A), lines 11a-11d,11f-24e) 30,248,402 31,451,806
18 Total expenses Add lines 13-17 (must equal PartIX, column (A), line 25) 75,821,110 80,075,551
19 Revenue less expenses Subtractline 18 from line 12 17,285,006 18,787,816
wd Beginning of Current End of Year
E§ Year
33 20 Total assets (Part X, line 16) 181,025,359 203,264,951
EE 21 Total habilities (Part X, line 26) 53,996,682 57,793,380
=3 22 Net assets or fund balances Subtractline 21 from line 20 127,028,677 145,471,571

Signature Block

Under penalties of perjury, I declare that I have examined this return, including accompanying schedules and statements, and to the best of
my knowledge and belief, it Is true, correct, and complete Declaration of preparer (other than officer) is based on all information of which
preparer has any knowledge

’ Hokk Rk K |2015—08—11
Sign Signature of officer Date
Here JULIE KEEGAN VICE PRESIDENT OF FINANCE
Type or prnint name and title
Pnnt/Type preparer's name Preparer's signature Date Check |_ I PTIN
P d DORI J EGGETT self-employed P00645252
ai Fim's name M EKS&H LLLP Firm's EIN = 46-1497033
Preparer
Use Only Firm's address 7979 E TUFTS AVENUE SUITE 400 Phone no (303) 740-9400
DENVER, CO 802372521

[“Yes[ No

May the IRS discuss this return with the preparer shown above? (see Iinstructions)

Cat No 11282Y Form 990 (2013)

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the separate instructions.



Form 990 (2013) Page 2
m Statement of Program Service Accomplishments

Check If Schedule O contains a response ornote to any lineinthis PartIII . . . . . &+ +v « +v o « « .

1

Briefly describe the organization’s mission

SEE SCHEDULE O

2 Did the organization undertake any significant program services during the year which were not listed on
the prior Form 990 0r 990-EZ? . . + v & o« o« wwe e e e e e [T Yes ¥ No
If "Yes," describe these new services on Schedule O
3 Did the organization cease conducting, or make significant changes in how it conducts, any program
SEIVICES? v v v e e e e e e e e e e [~ Yes [ No
If "Yes," describe these changes on Schedule O
4 Describe the organization’s program service accomplishments for each of its three largest program services, as measured by
expenses Section 501(c)(3)and 501(c)(4) organizations are required to report the amount of grants and allocations to others,
the total expenses, and revenue, If any, for each program service reported
4a (Code ) (Expenses $ 61,426,053 Including grants of $ 109,325 ) (Revenue $ 78,770,785 )
GENERAL HOSPITAL PROVIDES REHABILITATION AND MEDICAL SERVICESEXCLUSIVELY TO PATIENTS WITH SPINAL CORD AND TRAUMATIC BRAININJURY ON BOTH AN
INPATIENT AND OUTPATIENT BASIS DURING THE TAXYEAR, THE HOSPITAL PROVIDED 27,416 DAYS OF INPATIENT CARE AND INCURRED THESE EXPENSES IN
DOING SO
4b (Code ) (Expenses $ 2,708,552  including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ 2,708,552 )
CRAIG HOSPITAL IS DESIGNATED BY NIDRR AS A MODEL SYSTEM FOR BOTHSPINAL CORD INJURY AND TRAUMATIC BRAIN INJURY CRAIG IS ALSO THETRAUMATIC
BRAIN INJURY MODEL SYSTEMS NATIONAL DATA AND STATISTICAL CENTER AND ALSO CONDUCTED SEVERAL OTHER RESEARCH PROJECTS SUPPORTED BY NIDRR,
CDC, DOD, OTHER FOUNDATIONS, AND INDUSTRY DURING THE YEAR, CRAIG HOSPITAL'S RESEARCH DEPARTMENT EMPLOYED A STAFF OF 17 AND INCURRED
THESE EXPENSES TO SUPPORT THESE CRITICAL RESEARCH PROJECTS
4c (Code ) (Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )
4d Other program services (Describe in Schedule O )
(Expenses $ including grants of $ ) (Revenue $ )
4e Total program service expenses & 64,134,605

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013)
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Page 3
Checklist of Required Schedules

Yes No
Is the organization described in section 501(c)(3)or4947(a)(1) (otherthan a private foundation)? If "Yes,” Yes
complete Schedule A 1
Is the organization required to complete Schedule B, Schedule of Contributors (see Instructions)? ¥ 2 Yes
Did the organization engage in direct or Iindirect political campaign activities on behalf of or in opposition to No
candidates for public office? If "Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part I 3
Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization engage In lobbying activities, or have a section 501 (h) Yes
election In effect during the tax year? If "Yes,” complete Schedule C, Part I1 4
Is the organization a section 501(c)(4), 501 (c)(5), or 501(c)(6) organization that receives membership dues,
assessments, or similar amounts as defined in Revenue Procedure 98-197? If "Yes,"” complete Schedule C,
Part 111 . 5 No
Did the organization maintain any donor advised funds or any similar funds or accounts for which donors have the
right to provide advice on the distribution or investment of amounts 1n such funds or accounts? If "Yes,"” complete
Schedule D, Part % 6 No
Did the organization receive or hold a conservation easement, including easements to preserve open space,
the environment, historic land areas, or historic structures? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part II 7 No
Did the organization maintain collections of works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets? If "Yes,”
complete Schedule D, Part 111 Y& 8 No
Did the organization report an amount in Part X, line 21 for escrow or custodial account liability, serve as a
custodian for amounts not listed in Part X, or provide credit counseling, debt management, credit repair, or debt
negotiation services? If "Yes,"”" complete Schedule D, Part I 9 No
Did the organization, directly or through a related organization, hold assets in temporarily restricted endowments,| 10 Yes
permanent endowments, or quasi-endowments? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part
If the organization’s answer to any of the following questions Is "Yes," then complete Schedule D, Parts VI, VII,
VIII,IX, or X as applicable
Did the organization report an amount for land, buildings, and equipment in Part X, line 10?
If "Yes,"” complete Schedule D, Part VI.¥& . 11a | Yes
Did the organization report an amount for investments—other securities in Part X, line 12 that 1s 5% or more of
Its total assets reported In Part X, line 16? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part VII'E 11b No
Did the organization report an amount for investments—program related in Part X, line 13 that 1s 5% or more of
Its total assets reported in Part X, line 16? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part VIII 11c No
Did the organization report an amount for other assets in Part X, line 15 that 1s 5% or more of its total assets
reported in Part X, line 162 If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part I e e e e e 11d No
Did the organization report an amount for other liabilities in Part X, line 25? If "Yes,” complete Schedule D, Part X%} 11e No
Did the organization’s separate or consolidated financial statements for the tax year include a footnote that 11f | ves
addresses the organization’s liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740)? If "Yes,” complete
Schedule D, Part
Did the organization obtain separate, Independent audited financial statements for the tax year?
If "Yes," complete Schedule D, Parts XI and XII & 12a No
Was the organization included in consolidated, independent audited financial statements for the tax year? If
"Yes," and if the organization answered "No" to line 12a, then completing Schedule D, Parts XI and XII is optional ¥ 12b | Yes
Is the organization a school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(1n)? If "Yes,” complete Schedule E 13 No
Did the organization maintain an office, employees, or agents outside of the United States? 14a No
Did the organization have aggregate revenues or expenses of more than $10,000 from grantmaking, fundraising,
business, iInvestment, and program service activities outside the United States, or aggregate foreign investments
valued at $100,000 or more? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts I and IV . 14b No
Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to or
for any foreign organization? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts II and IV 15 No
Did the organization report on Part IX, column (A), line 3, more than $5,000 of aggregate grants or other
assistance to or for foreign individuals? If "Yes,” complete Schedule F, Parts III and IV . 16 No
Did the organization report a total of more than $15,000 of expenses for professional fundraising services on Part 17 No
IX, column (A), lines 6 and 11e? If "Yes,” complete Schedule G, Part I (see instructions)
Did the organization report more than $15,000 total of fundraising event gross income and contributions on Part
VIII, ines 1c and 8a? If "Yes," complete Schedule G, Part IT 18 No
Did the organization report more than $15,000 of gross income from gaming activities on Part VIII, line 9a? If 19 No
"Yes," complete Schedule G, Part I1]
Did the organization operate one or more hospital facilities? If "Yes,” complete ScheduleH . . . . ¥ 20a | Yes
If"Yes" to line 204, did the organization attach a copy of its audited financial statements to this return? 20b | Yes

Form 990 (2013)
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Form 990 (2013) Page 4
13 @AA Checklist of Required Schedules (continued)
Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to any domestic organization or 21 Yes
government on Part IX, column (A), line 1? If "Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts I and I]
Did the organization report more than $5,000 of grants or other assistance to individuals in the United States on 22 N
PartIX, column (A), ine 2? If "Yes,” complete Schedule I, Parts I and II] °
Did the organization answer "Yes" to Part VII, Section A, line 3, 4, or 5 about compensation of the organization’s v
current and former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and highest compensated employees? If "Yes,” 23 s
complete Schedule ] .
Did the organization have a tax-exempt bond issue with an outstanding principal amount of more than $100,000
as of the last day of the year, that was I1ssued after December 31, 2002? If "Yes,” answer lines 24b through 24d v
and complete Schedule K. If "No,” go to line 25a 24a es
Did the organization invest any proceeds of tax-exempt bonds beyond a temporary period exception? 24b No
Did the organization maintain an escrow account other than a refunding escrow at any time during the year N
to defease any tax-exempt bonds? 24c 0
Did the organization act as an "on behalf of" 1Issuer for bonds outstanding at any time during the year? 24d No
Section 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations. Did the organization engage In an excess benefit transaction with
a disqualified person during the year? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part I 25a No
Is the organization aware that it engaged in an excess benefit transaction with a disqualified person in a prior
year, and that the transaction has not been reported on any of the organization’s prior Forms 990 or 990-EZ? If | 25b No
"Yes," complete Schedule L, Part I
Did the organization report any amount on Part X, line 5, 6, or 22 for receivables from or payables to any current
or former officers, directors, trustees, key employees, highest compensated employees, or disqualified persons? 26 No
If so, complete Schedule L, Part II
Did the organization provide a grant or other assistance to an officer, director, trustee, key employee, substantial
contributor or employee thereof, a grant selection committee member, or to a 35% controlled entity or family 27 No
member of any of these persons? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part III
Was the organization a party to a business transaction with one of the following parties (see Schedule L, PartIV
instructions for applicable filing thresholds, conditions, and exceptions)
A current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part
IV . o e e e e e e e e e e e e 28a No
A family member of a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee? If "Yes,” N
complete Schedule L, Part IV .« v & v v e e e e e ¥ 28b °
An entity of which a current or former officer, director, trustee, or key employee (or a family member thereof) was v
an officer, director, trustee, or direct or indirect owner? If "Yes,” complete Schedule L, Part IV . 28c es
Did the organization receive more than $25,000 in non-cash contributions? If "Yes,” complete Schedule M . A 29 No
Did the organization receive contributions of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets, or qualified v
conservation contributions? If "Yes,” complete Schedule M 30 es
Did the organization liquidate, terminate, or dissolve and cease operations? If "Yes,” complete Schedule N, N
Part I 31 °
Did the organization sell, exchange, dispose of, or transfer more than 25% of its net assets? If "Yes,"” complete N
Schedule N, Part IT 32 0
Did the organization own 100% of an entity disregarded as separate from the organization under Regulations v
sections 301 7701-2 and 301 7701-3? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part I 33 €s
Was the organization related to any tax-exempt or taxable entity? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part II, III, or IV, v
and Part V, line 1 34 es
Did the organization have a controlled entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? 35a | Yes
If 'Yes'to line 35a, did the organization receive any payment from or engage in any transaction with a controlled 35b | v
entity within the meaning of section 512(b)(13)? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 €s
Section 501(c)(3) organizations. Did the organization make any transfers to an exempt non-charitable related N
organization? If "Yes,"” complete Schedule R, Part V, line 2 36 °
Did the organization conduct more than 5% of its activities through an entity that 1s not a related organization N
and that is treated as a partnership for federal iIncome tax purposes? If "Yes,” complete Schedule R, Part VI 37 °
Did the organization complete Schedule O and provide explanations in Schedule O for Part VI, lines 11b and 197 v
Note. All Form 990 filers are required to complete Schedule O 38 es

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013) Page 5
Statements Regarding Other IRS Filings and Tax Compliance

Check If Schedule O contains a response ornote to any lineinthisPartV... . . . + v W v w « .« .« . .
Yes No
la Enter the number reported in Box 3 of Form 1096 Enter -0- if not applicable . .| 1la 96
b Enter the number of Forms W-2G included in line 1a Enter-0- if not applicable ib

c Did the organization comply with backup withholding rules for reportable payments to vendors and reportable
gaming (gambling) winnings to prize winners? . . . .+ +  « o« 4 4 a4 w e a e 1c Yes

2a Enter the number of employees reported on Form W-3, Transmittal of Wage and
Tax Statements, filed for the calendar year ending with or within the year covered
by thisreturn . . . .+ .+« .+ v e e e e e e e e e 2a 948

b Ifatleastone s reported on line 2a, did the organization file all required federal employment tax returns?

Note. If the sum of lines 1a and 2a I1s greater than 250, you may be required to e-file (see Instructions) 2b ves
3a Did the organization have unrelated business gross income of $1,000 or more during the year? . . . 3a No
b If“Yes,” has it filed a Form 990-T for this year? If "No” to /ine 3b, provide an explanation in ScheduleO . . . 3b
4a At any time during the calendar year, did the organization have an interest in, or a signature or other authority

over, a financial account in a foreign country (such as a bank account, securities account, or other financial

account)? . . . . . w e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e da No
b If "Yes," enter the name of the foreign country

See Instructions for filing requirements for Form TD F 90-22 1, Report of Foreign Bank and Financial Accounts
5a Was the organization a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction at any time during the tax year? . . 5a No
b Did any taxable party notify the organization that it was or s a party to a prohibited tax shelter transaction? 5b No
c If"Yes," to line 5a or 5b, did the organization file Form 8886-T?

5c¢

6a Does the organization have annual gross receipts that are normally greater than $100,000, and did the 6a No

organization solicit any contributions that were not tax deductible as charitable contributions?
b If"Yes," did the organization include with every solicitation an express statement that such contributions or gifts

were not tax deductible? . . . . . . . L L oo 00 0w e e e e e e 6b
7 Organizations that may receive deductible contributions under section 170(c).
a Did the organization receive a payment in excess of $75 made partly as a contribution and partly for goods and 7a No

services provided to the payor?
b If"Yes," did the organization notify the donor of the value of the goods or services provided? . . . . . 7b
c Did the organization sell, exchange, or otherwise dispose of tangible personal property for which 1t was required to

fille Form 82822 . . . . . . . 4 4 a e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 72 No
d If"Yes," indicate the number of Forms 8282 filed during the year . . . . | 7d |
e Did the organization receive any funds, directly or indirectly, to pay premiums on a personal benefit

CONtract? . . + & & h h h h e e e e e e e e e e | 76 No
f Did the organization, during the year, pay premiums, directly or indirectly, on a personal benefit contract? . . 7f No
g Ifthe organization received a contribution of qualified intellectual property, did the organization file Form 8899 as

required? . . . 4 v e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e e s ey T

h Ifthe organization received a contribution of cars, boats, airplanes, or other vehicles, did the organization file a
Form 1098-C? . . . « « v e e e e a e e e e e e e e e 7h

8 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds and section 509(a)(3) supporting organizations. Did
the supporting organization, or a donor advised fund maintained by a sponsoring organization, have excess
business holdings at any time duringtheyear? . . . . . . . . . . . . 8

9 Sponsoring organizations maintaining donor advised funds.

a Did the organization make any taxable distributions under section 49662 . . . . . . . . . . 9a
Did the organization make a distribution to a donor, donor advisor, or related person? . . . . . . . 9b
10 Section 501(c)(7) organizations. Enter
Initiation fees and capital contributions included on Part VIII,ine12 . . . 10a
b Gross receipts, included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12, for public use of club 10b
facilities
11 Section 501(c)(12) organizations. Enter
a Gross income from members or shareholders . . . . . . . . . 11a
Gross Income from other sources (Do not net amounts due or paid to other sources
against amounts due orreceived fromthem) . . . . . . . . . . 11b
12a Section 4947(a)(1) non-exempt charitable trusts. Is the organization filing Form 990 in lieu of Form 10417 12a

b If"Yes," enter the amount of tax-exempt interest received or accrued during the
Year . . 4 4w e e e e e e e e 12b

13 Section 501(c)(29) qualified nonprofit health insurance issuers.

a Is the organization licensed to iIssue qualified health plans in more than one state?

Note. See the instructions for additional information the organization must report on Schedule O 13a
b Enter the amount of reserves the organization 1s required to maintain by the states
in which the organization is licensed to 1Issue qualified health plans 13b
c Enter the amount of reservesonhand . . . . . . . . . . . . 13c
14a Did the organization recelve any payments for indoor tanning services during the tax year> . . . . . 14a No
b If"Yes," has it filed a Form 720 to report these payments? If "No,” provide an explanation in Schedule O . . 14b

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013) Page 6
m Governance, Management, and Disclosure For each "Yes" response to lines 2 through 7b below, and for a

"No" response to lines 8a, 8b, or 10b below, describe the circumstances, processes, or changes in Schedule O.
See instructions.
Check If Schedule O contains a response ornote to any lineinthisPartVI . . . . . .+ +« + +v & +« . . ¥

Section A. Governing Body and Management

la

7a

9

Yes No
Enter the number of voting members of the governing body at the end of the tax 1a 18
year
If there are matenial differences In voting rights among members of the governing
body, or If the governing body delegated broad authority to an executive committee
or similar committee, explain in Schedule O
Enter the number of voting members included in line 1a, above, who are
independent . . . . .+ v v 4 4 e e e e e e e e W | 1 17
Did any officer, director, trustee, or key employee have a family relationship or a business relationship with any
other officer, director, trustee, or key employee? . . . .+ .+ .+ « « &+ 4 w44 a4 2 No
Did the organization delegate control over management duties customarily performed by or under the direct 3 No
supervision of officers, directors or trustees, or key employees to a management company or other person?
Did the organization make any significant changes to its governing documents since the prior Form 990 was
1= 4 | Yes
Did the organization become aware during the year of a significant diversion of the organization’s assets? . 5 No
Did the organization have members or stockholders? . . . . . .. . .+ .+ .+ .« .+ .« .« . . 6 No
Did the organization have members, stockholders, or other persons who had the power to elect or appoint one or
more members of the governingbody? . . . . . . . . . . . . . .0 ... 7a No
Are any governance decisions of the organization reserved to (or subject to approval by) members, stockholders,| 7b No
or persons other than the governing body?
Did the organization contemporaneously document the meetings held or written actions undertaken during the
year by the following
The governing body? . . . .+ .+ & & & + « &« 4« 4 4 4 e e e a a4 4. | Ba ] Yes
Each committee with authority to act on behalf of the governingbody? . . . . . . . . . . . .| 8b Yes
Is there any officer, director, trustee, or key employee listed in Part VII, Section A, who cannot be reached at the
organization’s mailing address? If "Yes " provide the names and addresses n Schedu/e o . . . 9 No

Section B. Policies (This Section B requests information about policies not required by the Internal Revenue Code.)

10a
b

11a

12a

13

14
15

16a

Yes No
Did the organization have local chapters, branches, or affihates? . . . . . . . . . .+ . . 10a No
If "Yes," did the organization have written policies and procedures governing the activities of such chapters,
affiliates, and branches to ensure their operations are consistent with the organization's exempt purposes? 10b
Has the organization provided a complete copy of this Form 990 to all members of its governing body before filing
the form? . . . . . . . . . . . . . . e e . e e e e . e w o . |11a ) Yes
Describe in Schedule O the process, iIf any, used by the organization to review this Form 990
Did the organization have a written conflict of interest policy? If “No,"gotoline13 . . . . . . . 12a | Yes
Were officers, directors, or trustees, and key employees required to disclose annually interests that could give
rseto conflicts? . . . . . . . ..o e e e e e e e e e e e 12b | Yes
Did the organization regularly and consistently monitor and enforce compliance with the policy? If "Yes,” describe
in Schedule O how this was done . . . . « « & « & « 4 4 w4 e e e . J|12c] Yes
Did the organization have a written whistleblower policy? . . . .. . . .+ . .+ «+ .« .+« .+ . . 13 Yes
Did the organization have a written document retention and destruction policy? . . . . . . . . . 14 Yes
Did the process for determining compensation of the following persons include a review and approval by
independent persons, comparability data, and contemporaneous substantiation of the deliberation and decision?
The organization’s CEO, Executive Director, or top management offictal . . . . . . . . . . . 15a | Yes
Other officers or key employees of the organization . . . . . .+ .+ .+ + « « « &« 4« . 15b | Yes
If"Yes" to line 15a or 15b, describe the process in Schedule O (see Instructions)
Did the organization invest in, contribute assets to, or participate In a joint venture or similar arrangement with a
taxable entity during the year? . . . . . . . . . . e e e e e e e e 16a No

If "Yes," did the organization follow a written policy or procedure requiring the organization to evaluate its
participation in joint venture arrangements under applicable federal tax law, and take steps to safeguard the
organization’s exempt status with respect to such arrangements? . . . . . . . . . . . . 16b

Section C. Disclosure

17
18

19

20

List the States with which a copy of this Form 990 I1s required to be filedm

Section 6104 requires an organization to make its Form 1023 (or 1024 if applicable), 990, and 990-T (501(c)
(3)s only) available for public inspection Indicate how you made these available Check all that apply

[T own website [ Another's website [¥ Uponrequest [ Other (explainin Schedule 0)

Describe in Schedule O whether (and If so, how) the organization made its governing documents, conflict of
Interest policy, and financial statements available to the public during the tax year

State the name, physical address, and telephone number of the person who possesses the books and records of the organization
JULIE KEEGAN 3425 S CLARKSON ST
ENGLEWOOD,CO 801132811 (303)789-8443

Form 990 (2013)



Form 990 (2013) Page 7

m Compensation of Officers, Directors,Trustees, Key Employees, Highest Compensated
Employees, and Independent Contractors
Check If Schedule O contains a response or note to any lineinthis PartVII . . . . . . . « « .« . . . I

Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

1a Complete this table for all persons required to be listed Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s
tax year

# List all of the organization’s current officers, directors, trustees (whether individuals or organizations), regardless of amount
of compensation Enter-0-1n columns (D), (E), and (F) if no compensation was paid

# List all of the organization’s current key employees, If any See instructions for definition of "key employee "

# List the organization’s five current highest compensated employees (other than an officer, director, trustee or key employee)
who recelved reportable compensation (Box 5 of Form W-2 and/or Box 7 of Form 1099-MISC) of more than $100,000 from the
organization and any related organizations

# List all of the organization’s former officers, key employees, or highest compensated employees who received more than $100,000
of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations

# List all of the organization’s former directors or trustees that received, in the capacity as a former director or trustee of the
organization, more than $10,000 of reportable compensation from the organization and any related organizations

List persons In the following order individual trustees or directors, institutional trustees, officers, key employees, highest
compensated employees, and former such persons
[T Check this box If neither the organization nor any related organization compensated any current officer, director, or trustee

(A) (B) (©) (D) (E) (F)

Name and Title Average Position (do not check Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per more than one box, unless | compensation | compensation amount of
week (list person i1s both an officer from the from related other
any hours and a director/trustee) organization organizations compensation
for related o= | _ 2 = |o T | (W-2/1099- (W-2/1099- from the

organizations (" & | = |Z |® |2& |2 MISC) MISC) organization
o= I ] pair Y
below == |3 |6 |le [T |2 and related
g [m = i b= = B
dotted line) c|= P organizations
o2 e =i
- = E ]
c | = T =
212 |°| 8
O 7
by E
- o
[u
(1) LAURIE FENSKE 200
X 0 0 0
DIRECTOR
(2) MARILYN TAYLOR 200
X 0 0 0
DIRECTOR
(3) TOM BALAZY MD 200
X 0 0 0
DIRECTOR
(4) GREG AUSTIN 2 00
X 0 0 0
DIRECTOR
(5) JASON REGIER 200
X 0 0 0
DIRECTOR
(6) VANDY VAN WAGENER 2 00
X 0 0 0
DIRECTOR
(7) JANET HOUSER 200
X X 0 0 0
CHAIR ELECT/SECRETARY
(8) NAN HINTON 200
X 0 0 0
DIRECTOR
(9) JUSTIN MONINGER 200
X 0 0 0
DIRECTOR
(10) HUGH RICE 2 00
X X 0 0 0
TREASURER/VICE CHAIR
(11) DAN MAY 2 00
X X 0 0 0
PAST CHAIR
(12) BILL LINDSAY 2 00
X X 0 0 0
CHAIR
(13) SHELLY MOSES-REED 200
X X 0 0 0
SECRETARY/TREASURER
(14) MIKE FORDYCE 40 00
X X 555,708 0 149,542
PRESIDENT & CEO 8 00
(15) MARY SISSEL 200
X 0 0 0
DIRECTOR 200
(16) RAY MENCINI 2 00
X 0 0 0
DIRECTOR
(17) KEVIN LOUGHREY 200
X 0 0 0
DIRECTOR

Form 990 (2013)
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m Section A. Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees (continued)

(A) (B) (©) (D) (E) (F)

Name and Title Average Position (do not check Reportable Reportable Estimated
hours per more than one box, unless | compensation compensation | amount of other
week (list person i1s both an officer from the from related compensation
any hours and a director/trustee) organization organizations from the
for related o= | _ 2 = o T |n (W-2/1099- (W-2/1099- organization

organizations a a > |Z|r |da |2 MISC) MISC) and related
below E= |5 |8 |o %6 3 organizations
g [m = il = R
dotted line) c |2 P
o2 e oA
- = ) [m}
— o — 5
c | = T =
212 |°| %
o I 7
by E
- T
C
(18) MICHAEL NIXSON 200
X 0 0 0
DIRECTOR
(19) BETSY MANGONE 200
X 0 0 0
DIRECTOR 200
(20) JULIE KEEGAN 40 00
X 251,398 0 62,725
VP FINANCE 250
(21) DANA POLONSKY 40 00
X 204,670 0 66,269
VP CLINICAL SERVICES
(22) DIANE REINHARD 40 00
X 207,234 0 66,413
VP PATIENT CARE
(23) LESTER BUTT 40 00
X 180,019 0 26,492
DIRECTOR - PSYCHOLOGY
(24) KENNY HOSACK 40 00
X 165,235 0 25,944
DIRECTOR - PROVIDER RELATIONS & MKTG
(25) CYNTHIA HARRISON-FELIX 40 00
X 142,199 0 22,373
DIRECTOR - RESEARCH
(26) MARY FELLER 0 00
X 0 186,149 8,776
EXECUTIVE DIRECTOR - FOUNDATION 40 00
(27) CHRIS WATKINS 40 00
X 152,305 0 25,338
DIRECTOR - IT 0 00
i1b  Sub-Total >
c Total from continuation sheets to Part VII, Section A *
Total (add lines 1b and 1c) * 1,858,768 186,149 453,872
2 Total number of individuals (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than
$100,000 of reportable compensation from the organization®8
Yes No
3 Did the organization list any former officer, director or trustee, key employee, or highest compensated employee
on line 1a? If "Yes,”" complete Schedule J for such individual . .+« .« « « &« « &« o &« 2 &« &« & 3 No
4 For any individual listed on line 1a, Is the sum of reportable compensation and other compensation from the
organization and related organizations greaterthan $150,000°? If "Yes,"” complete Schedule J for such
individual « « = & & 4 4 w4 4 e w w aa s e s e e e owla | Yes
5 Did any person listed on line 1a recelve or accrue compensation from any unrelated organization or individual for
services rendered to the organization? If "Yes,” complete Schedule J for suchperson .+« .« « « &« &« & 5 No
Section B. Independent Contractors
1 Complete this table for your five highest compensated independent contractors that received more than $100,000 of
compensation from the organization Report compensation for the calendar year ending with or within the organization’s tax year
(A) (B) (©)
Name and business address Description of services Compensation
GE JOHNSON CONSTRUCTION COMPANY 25 N CASCADA AVE COLORADO SPRINGS CO 80903 CONSTRUCTION SERVICES 15,998,686
SWEDISH MEDICAL CENTER 501 E HAMPDEN AVE ENGLEWOOD CO 80013 MEDICAL SERVICES 10,483,134
RTA INC 19 S TEJON ST COLORADO SPRINGS CO 80903 ARCHITECTURE SERVICES 2,249,582
CNS MEDICAL GROUP DEPT 710924 DENVER CO 80271 MEDICAL DIRECTOR/RESEARCH 806,773
HAMMES COMPANY 18000 W SARAH LANE BROOKFIELD WI 53045 PROJECT MANAGEMENT 360,000

2 Total number of Independent contractors (including but not limited to those listed above) who received more than

$100,000 of compensation from the organization 14

Form 990 (2013)
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Check If Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part VIII .. .. . L
(A) (B) (©) (D)
Total revenue Related or Unrelated Revenue
exempt business excluded from
function revenue tax under
revenue sections
512-514
@ la Federated campaigns . . 1a
2
= § b Membershipdues . . . . ib
=]
(e = |
2 £ ¢ Fundraisingevents . . . . 1c
el
E 5 d Related organizations . . . 1d 10,852,058
o=
o = e Government grants (contributions) 1e 2,708,552
in
E - f Al other contnibutions, gifts, grants, and  1f 75,755
E T} similar amounts not included above
—
.'E 5 g Noncash contributions included in lines
= la-1f $
==
= = h Total. Add lines 1a-1f 13,636,365
oom -
@ Business Code
E 2a MEDICAL SERVICES 621110 80,530,003 80,530,003
=
gf b PATIENT APARTMENTS 721000 840,253 840,253
3 Cc MEDICAL OFFICE RENT 531190 109,081 109,081
E d
— e
&
= f All other program service revenue
=
& g Total. Add lines 2a-2f - 81,479,337
3 Investment income (including dividends, interest, 580,572 580,572
and other similar amounts) * ! !
Income from investment of tax-exempt bond proceeds , , *
5 Royalties *
(1) Real (1) Personal
6a Gross rents
b Less rental
expenses
¢ Rental income
or (loss)
d Net rental income or (loss) .
(1) Securities (n) Other
7a Gross amount
from sales of 64,319,503 7,750
assets other
than inventory
b Less costor
other basis and 62,615,156 480,916
sales expenses
Gain or (loss) 1,704,347 -473,166
Net gain or (loss) - 1,231,181 1,231,181
8a Gross income from fundraising
L& events (not including
=5
T $
- of contributions reported on line 1c¢)
& See Part1IV, line 18
o
:. a
&
_'_1:_ b Less direct expenses . . . b
o) c Netincome or (loss) from fundraising events . .
9a Gross income from gaming activities
See Part1IV, line 19
a
b Less direct expenses . . . b
c Netincome or (loss) from gaming activities . . .m
10a Gross sales of inventory, less
returns and allowances
a
b Less costofgoods sold . . b
c Netincome or (loss) from sales of iInventory . . @
Miscellaneous Revenue Business Code
b REIMB GRANT INDIR 900099 495,280 495,280
€ RDS REVENUE 900099 63,074 63,074
d All other revenue
e Total.Addlines 11a-11d -
1,935,912
12  Total revenue. See Instructions -
98,863,367 83,415,249 0 1,811,753

Form 990 (2013)
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m Statement of Functional Expenses

Section 501(c)(3)and 501(c)(4) organizations must complete all columns All other organizations must complete column (A)

Check if Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part IX .. .. ..
Do not include amounts reported on lines 6b, (A) PrOgraS‘nB)SerVICG Manage(r(1:1)ent and Funég)lsmg
7b, 8b, 9b, and 10b of Part VIII. Total expenses expenses general expenses expenses
1 Grants and other assistance to governments and organizations
In the United States See PartIV, line 21 109,325 109,325
2 Grants and other assistance to individuals in the
United States See PartIV,line 22
3 Grants and other assistance to governments,
organizations, and individuals outside the United
States See PartIV, lines 15 and 16
Benefits paid to or for members
5 Compensation of current officers, directors, trustees, and
key employees . . . . 1,643,484 1,643,484
6 Compensation not included above, to disqualified persons
(as defined under section 4958(f)(1)) and persons
described in section 4958 (c)(3)(B)
7 Other salaries and wages 35,809,214 29,783,035 6,026,179
8 Pension plan accruals and contributions (include section 401 (k)
and 403(b) employer contributions) . . . . 2,479,181 2,092,627 386,554
9 Other employee benefits . . . . . . . 5,948,550 5,130,843 817,707
10 Payrolltaxes . . . . .+ .+ .+ .+ . . . 2,633,991 2,216,024 417,967
11 Fees for services (non-employees)
a Management
b Legal . . . . . . . . . 231,384 231,384
¢ Accounting . . . . . . 4 4 4 .. 76,721 76,721
d Lobbying . . . . . . . . . . . 59,415 59,415
e Professional fundraising services See PartIV, line 17
f Investment managementfees . . . . . . 138,065 138,065
g Other(Ifline 11g amount exceeds 10% ofline 25,
column (A) amount, list line 11g expenses on
Schedule 0) . . . . . . . . 12,031,646 11,828,961 202,685
12 Advertising and promotion . . . . 576,539 576,539
13 Office expenses . . . . . . . 1,244,539 737,343 507,196
14 Information technology . . . . . . 1,886,575 1,886,575
15 Rovyalties
16 Occupancy . .« « « & « o« a a a 1,319,494 1,097,443 222,051
17 Travel . v v v v e e e e e e 485,546 198,348 287,198
18 Payments of travel or entertainment expenses for any federal,
state, or local public officials
19 Conferences, conventions, and meetings . . . . 48,023 48,023
20 Interest . . . .+ . .+ . . . . . 24,667 24,667
21 Payments to affiliates
22 Depreciation, depletion, and amortization . . . . . 5,149,979 3,340,972 1,809,007
23 Insurance . . . . .+ . 4 4 44w e 308,197 308,197
24 Other expenses Itemize expenses not covered above (List
miscellaneous expenses In line 24e Ifline 24e amount exceeds 10%
of ine 25, column (A) amount, list line 24e expenses on Schedule O )
a MEDICAL SUPPLIES 3,256,479 3,252,636 3,843
b RESEARCH EXPENSE 2,708,552 2,708,552
c¢ FOOD EXPENSE 875,716 846,380 29,336
d MINOREQUIPMENT/REPAIR 628,685 552,155 76,530
e All other expenses 401,584 239,961 161,623
25 Total functional expenses. Add lines 1 through 24e 80,075,551 64,134,605 15,940,946 0
26 Joint costs. Complete this line only If the organization
reported in column (B) joint costs from a combined
educational campaign and fundraising solicitation Check
here ® [ if following SOP 98-2 (ASC 958-720)

Form 990 (2013)
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Balance Sheet

Check iIf Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part X .. '
(A) (B)
Beginning of year End of year
1 Cash-non-interest-bearing 4,454 131 1 4,548,752
2 Savings and temporary cash investments 28,050,023 2 29,838,575
3 Pledges and grants receivable, net 386,105 3 422 403
4 Accounts recelvable, net 19,744,033 4 17,190,612
5 Loans and other receivables from current and former officers, directors, trustees, key
employees, and highest compensated employees Complete Part II of
Schedule L
5
6 Loans and other receivables from other disqualified persons (as defined under section
4958 (f)(1)), persons described in section 4958(c)(3)(B), and contributing employers
and sponsoring organizations of section 501(c)(9) voluntary employees' beneficiary
" organizations (see Instructions) Complete Part II of Schedule L
o 6
ﬂ 7 Notes and loans receivable, net 7
< 8 Inventories for sale or use 512,110 8 576,992
9 Prepaid expenses and deferred charges 1,026,592 9 925,348
10a Land, buildings, and equipment cost or other basis
Complete Part VI of Schedule D 10a 147,274,274
b Less accumulated depreciation 10b 46,169,751 63,215,336| 10c 101,104,523
11 Investments—publicly traded securities 62,177,342| 11 46,867,816
12 Investments—other securities See Part IV, line 11 12
13 Investments—program-related See Part IV, line 11 13
14 Intangible assets 14
15 Other assets See PartIV,line 11 1,459,687| 15 1,789,930
16 Total assets. Add lines 1 through 15 (must equal line 34) 181,025,359| 16 203,264,951
17 Accounts payable and accrued expenses 16,401,682| 17 20,823,380
18 Grants payable 18
19 Deferred revenue 19
20 Tax-exempt bond habilities 37,595,000 20 36,970,000
w 21 Escrow or custodial account hability Complete Part IV of Schedule D 21
:E 22 Loans and other payables to current and former officers, directors, trustees,
= key employees, highest compensated employees, and disqualified
ﬁ persons Complete Part II of Schedule L 22
= 23 Secured mortgages and notes payable to unrelated third parties 23
24 Unsecured notes and loans payable to unrelated third parties 24
25 Other liabilities (including federal Income tax, payables to related third parties,
and other habilities not included on lines 17-24) Complete Part X of Schedule
D 25
26 Total liabilities. Add lines 17 through 25 53,996,682 26 57,793,380
" Organizations that follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here & [ and complete
E lines 27 through 29, and lines 33 and 34.
% 27 Unrestricted net assets 127,028,677 27 145,471,571
E 28 Temporarily restricted net assets 28
E 29 Permanently restricted net assets 29
u:. Organizations that do not follow SFAS 117 (ASC 958), check here » [ and
= complete lines 30 through 34.
- 30 Capital stock or trust principal, or current funds 30
E 31 Paid-1n or capital surplus, or land, building or equipment fund 31
.»;':|:"1I 32 Retained earnings, endowment, accumulated income, or other funds 32
0 33 Total net assets or fund balances 127,028,677| 33 145,471,571
= 34 Total lhabilities and net assets/fund balances 181,025,359 34 203,264,951

Form 990 (2013)
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lm Reconcilliation of Net Assets
Check If Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI g
1 Total revenue (must equal Part VIII, column (A), line 12)
1 98,863,367
2 Total expenses (must equal Part IX, column (A), line 25)
2 80,075,551
3 Revenue less expenses Subtractline 2 from line 1
3 18,787,816
4 Net assets or fund balances at beginning of year (must equal Part X, line 33, column (A))
4 127,028,677
5 Net unrealized gains (losses) on investments
5 -344,922
6 Donated services and use of facilities
6
7 Investment expenses
7
8 Prior period adjustments
8
9 Otherchanges in net assets or fund balances (explain in Schedule 0)
9 0
10 Net assets or fund balances at end of year Combine lines 3 through 9 (must equal Part X, line 33,
column (B)) 10 145,471,571
Financial Statements and Reporting
Check If Schedule O contains a response or note to any line in this Part XI1I .-
Yes No
1 Accounting method used to prepare the Form 990 [ cash [ Accrual [ Other
If the organization changed its method of accounting from a prior year or checked "Other," explainin
Schedule O
2a Were the organization’s financial statements compiled or reviewed by an independent accountant? 2a No
If 'Yes,' check a box below to indicate whether the financial statements for the year were compiled or reviewed on
a separate basis, consolidated basis, or both
[ Separate basis [T Consolidated basis [~ Both consolidated and separate basis
b Were the organization’s financial statements audited by an independent accountant? 2b Yes
If Yes,' check a box below to Iindicate whether the financial statements for the year were audited on a separate
basis, consolidated basis, or both
[ Separate basis [ Consolidated basis [~ Both consolidated and separate basis
c If"Yes," to line 2a or 2b, does the organization have a committee that assumes responsibility for oversight of the
audit, review, or compilation of its financial statements and selection of an independent accountant? 2c Yes
If the organization changed either its oversight process or selection process during the tax year, explain in
Schedule O
3a As aresult of a federal award, was the organization required to undergo an audit or audits as set forth in the
Single Audit Act and OMB Circular A-1337 3a Yes
b If"Yes," did the organization undergo the required audit or audits? If the organization did not undergo the 3b Yes

required audit or audits, explain why in Schedule O and describe any steps taken to undergo such audits

Form 990 (2013)
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SCHEDULE A
(Form 990 or 990EZ)

Department of the

Treasury

Internal Revenue Service

OMB No 1545-0047

2013

Public Charity Status and Public Support
Complete if the organization is a section 501(c)(3) organization or a section 4947(a)(1)
nonexempt charitable trust.

I Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. = See separate instructions.
P Information about Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its instructions is at

Name of the organization
CRAIG HOSPITAL

Open to Public
Inspection

Employer identification number

www.irs.gov /form990.

84-0404233

m Reason for Public Charity Status (All organizations must complete this part.) See instructions.
The organization I1s not a private foundation because iti1s (For lines 1 through 11, check only one box )

1 [T A church, convention of churches, or association of churches described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(i).

2 [T A school described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(ii). (Attach Schedule E )

3 ¥ A hospital or a cooperative hospital service organization described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii).

4 [T A medical research organization operated In conjunction with a hospital described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(iii). Enter the
hospital's name, city, and state

5 [T An organization operated for the benefit of a college or university owned or operated by a governmental unit described In
section 170(b)(1)(A)(iv). (Complete Part II )

6 [T A federal, state, or local government or governmental unit described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(v).

7 [T Anorganization that normally receives a substantial part of its support from a governmental unit or from the general public
described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi). (Complete Part II )

8 [T A community trust described in section 170(b)(1)(A)(vi) (Complete Part II )

9 [T An organization that normally receives (1) more than 331/3% of Iits support from contributions, membership fees, and gross
receipts from activities related to its exempt functions—subject to certain exceptions, and (2) no more than 331/3% of
Its support from gross investment income and unrelated business taxable Income (less section 511 tax) from businesses
acquired by the organization after June 30,1975 See section 509(a)(2). (Complete PartIII )

10 [T An organization organized and operated exclusively to test for public safety See section 509(a)(4).

11 [T Anorganization organized and operated exclusively for the benefit of, to perform the functions of, or to carry out the purposes of
one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or section 509(a)(2) See section 509(a)(3). Check
the box that describes the type of supporting organization and complete lines 11e through 11h

a [ Typel b [ Typell ¢ [ Typelll - Functionally integrated d [ Type III - Non-functionally integrated
e [T By checking this box, I certify that the organization I1s not controlled directly or indirectly by one or more disqualified persons
other than foundation managers and other than one or more publicly supported organizations described in section 509(a)(1) or
section 509(a)(2)
f If the organization received a written determination from the IRS that it i1s a Type I, Type II, or Type I1I supporting organization,
check this box
g Since August 17, 2006, has the organization accepted any gift or contribution from any of the
following persons?
(i) A person who directly or indirectly controls, either alone or together with persons described in (1) Yes | No
and (1) below, the governing body of the supported organization? 11g(i)
(ii) A family member of a person described in (1) above? 11g(ii)
(iii) A 35% controlled entity of a person described in (1) or (1) above? 11g(iii)
h Provide the following information about the supported organization(s)

(i) Name of
supported
organization

(i) EIN

(iii) Type of
organization
(described on

(iv) Is the
organization In
col (i) listed In

(v) Did you notify
the organization
in col (i) of your

(vi) Is the
organization In
col (i) organized

(vii) Amount of
monetary
support

lines 1- 9 above your governing support? intheU S 7
or IRC section document?
(see
instructions))
Yes No Yes No Yes No

Total

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990EZ.

Cat No 11285F

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013 Page 2
IERTESN Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Sections 170(b)(1)(A)(iv) and 170(b)(1)(A)(vi)

(Complete only If you checked the box on line 5, 7, or 8 of Part I or If the organization failed to qualify under
Part II1. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part III.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning

1

6

n) B (a) 2009 (b) 2010 (c) 2011 (d) 2012 (e) 2013 (f) Total

Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received (Do not
include any "unusual

grants ")

Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either
paid to or expended on Its
behalf

The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge

Total. Add lines 1 through 3

The portion of total contributions
by each person (other than a
governmental unit or publicly
supported organization) included on
line 1 that exceeds 2% of the
amount shown on line 11, column

(f)

Public support. Subtract line 5 from
line 4

Section B. Total Support

Calendar year (or fiscal year beginning

7
8

10

11

12
13

iy (a) 2009 (b) 2010 (c) 2011 (d) 2012 (e) 2013 (f) Total

Amounts from line 4

Gross Income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties
and income from similar

sources

Net income from unrelated
business activities, whether or not
the business Is regularly carried
on

Otherincome Do notinclude gain
or loss from the sale of capital
assets (Explainin Part IV )

Total support (Add lines 7 through
10)

Gross receipts from related activities, etc (see Iinstructions) | 12 |

First five years. If the Form 990 1s for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax year as a 501(c)(3) organization, check

this box and stop here il
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
14 Public support percentage for 2013 (line 6, column (f) divided by line 11, column (f)) 14
15 Public support percentage for 2012 Schedule A, PartII, line 14 15
16a 33 1/3% support test—2013. If the organization did not check the box on line 13, and line 14 1s 33 1/3% or more, check this box
and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization >
b 33 1/3% support test—2012. If the organization did not check a box online 13 or 16a, and line 15 1s 33 1/3% or more, check this
box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization >
17a 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2013. If the organization did not check a box online 13, 16a, or 16b, and line 14
I1Is 10% or more, and If the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances"” test, check this box and stop here. Explain
in Part IV how the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances” test The organization qualifies as a publicly supported
organization [ 2
b 10%-facts-and-circumstances test—2012. If the organization did not check a box on line 13, 16a, 16b, or 17a, and line
151s 10% or more, and If the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances” test, check this box and stop here.
Explainin Part IV how the organization meets the "facts-and-circumstances"” test The organization qualifies as a publicly
supported organization PI_
18 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box online 13, 16a, 16b, 17a, or 17b, check this box and see
Instructions L2

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013 Page 3
.m Support Schedule for Organizations Described in Section 509(a)(2)

(Complete only If you checked the box on line 9 of Part I or If the organization failed to qualfy under
Part II. If the organization fails to qualify under the tests listed below, please complete Part II.)

Section A. Public Support

Calendar year (°Enf)'s:a' vear beginning (a) 2009 (b) 2010 (c) 2011 (d) 2012 (e) 2013 (F) Total
1 Gifts, grants, contributions, and
membership fees received (Do not
include any "unusual grants ")
2 Gross receipts from admissions,
merchandise sold or services
performed, or facilities furnished in
any activity that 1s related to the
organization's tax-exempt
purpose
3 Gross recelipts from activities that
are not an unrelated trade or
business under section 513
4 Tax revenues levied for the
organization's benefit and either
paid to or expended on Its
behalf
5 The value of services or facilities
furnished by a governmental unit to
the organization without charge
6 Total.Add lines 1 through 5
7a Amounts includedonlines 1, 2,
and 3 recelved from disqualified
persons
b Amounts included on lines 2 and 3
received from other than
disqualified persons that exceed
the greater of $5,000 or 1% of the
amount on line 13 for the year
c Addlines 7aand 7b
8 Public support (Subtract line 7¢
from line 6 )
Section B. Total Support
Calendar year (°Enf)'s:a' vear beginning (a) 2009 (b) 2010 (c) 2011 (d) 2012 (e) 2013 (F) Total
9 Amounts from line 6
10a Gross income from interest,
dividends, payments received on
securities loans, rents, royalties
and income from similar
sources
b Unrelated business taxable
income (less section 511 taxes)
from businesses acquired after
June 30,1975
c Addlines 10a and 10b
11 Net income from unrelated
business activities not included
in line 10b, whether or not the
business Is regularly carried on
12 Otherincome Do notinclude
gain or loss from the sale of
capital assets (Explainin Part
IV )
13 Total support. (Add lines 9, 10c,
11,and 12)
14 First five years. If the Form 990 1s for the organization's first, second, third, fourth, or fifth tax yearas a 501(c)(3) organization,
check this box and stop here >
Section C. Computation of Public Support Percentage
15 Public support percentage for 2013 (line 8, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f)) 15
16 Public support percentage from 2012 Schedule A, Part I1I, line 15 16
Section D. Computation of Investment Income Percentage
17 Investment income percentage for 2013 (line 10c¢, column (f) divided by line 13, column (f)) 17
18 Investment income percentage from 2012 Schedule A, PartIII, ine 17 18
19a 33 1/3% support tests—2013. If the organization did not check the box on line 14, and line 15 I1s more than 33 1/3%, and line 17 1s not
more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization L2
b 33 1/3% support tests—2012. If the organization did not check a box on line 14 orline 19a, and line 16 1s more than 33 1/3% and line 18
I1s not more than 33 1/3%, check this box and stop here. The organization qualifies as a publicly supported organization L2
20 Private foundation. If the organization did not check a box on line 14, 19a, or 19b, check this box and see Instructions L2

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013



Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013

Page 4

Part IV Supplemental Information. Provide the explanations required by Part II, line 10; Part II, line 17a or
17b; and Part I1I, ine 12. Also complete this part for any additional information. (See Instructions).

Facts And Circumstances Test

Return Reference

Explanation

Schedule A (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013



lefile GRAPHIC print - DO NOT PROCESS | As Filed Data - |

DLN: 93493229041825|

SCHEDULE C Political Campaign and Lobbying Activities
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) For Organizations Exempt From Income Tax Under section 501(c) and section 527
= Complete if the organization is described below. I Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ.
I See separate instructions.  Information about Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its
instructions is at www.irs.gov /form990.

Department of the Treasury
Intemal Revenue Service

OMB No 1545-0047

Open to Public
Inspection

If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, Line 3, or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 46 (Political Cam paign Activities), then

# Section 501(c)(3) organizations Complete Parts FA and B Do not complete Part I-C

# Section 501(c) (other than section 501(c)(3)) organizations Complete Parts I-A and C below Do not complete Part |-B

# Section 527 organizations Complete Part I-A only

If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, Line 4, or Form 990-EZ, Part VI, line 47 (Lobbying Activities), then

# Section 501(c)(3) organizations that have filed Form 5768 (election under section 501(h)) Complete Part IFA Do not complete Part II-B

# Section 501(c)(3) organizations that have NOT filed Form 5768 (election under section 501(h)) Complete Part IFB Do not complete Part IIF-A
If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, Line 5 (Proxy Tax) or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 35c (Proxy Tax), then

# Section 501(c)(4), (5), or (6) organizations Complete Part Il

Name of the organization
CRAIG HOSPITAL

84-0404233

Employer identification number

m Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c) or is a section 527 organization.

1 Provide a description of the organization’s direct and indirect political campaign activities in Part IV

2 Political expenditures L3

3  Volunteer hours

-ladd:] Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3).

1 Enter the amount of any excise tax incurred by the organization under section 4955 L3
2 Enter the amount of any excise tax incurred by organization managers under section 4955 L3
3 If the organization incurred a section 4955 tax, did it file Form 4720 for this year? [~ Yes [~ No
4a Was a correction made? [T Yes [ No
b If"Yes," describe inPartIV
Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c), except section 501(c)(3).
1 Enter the amount directly expended by the filing organization for section 527 exempt function activities
2 Enter the amount of the filing organization's funds contributed to other organizations for section 527
exempt function activities L3
3 Total exempt function expenditures Addlines 1 and 2 Enter here and on Form 1120-POL, ine 17b L3
Did the filing organization file Form 1120-POL for this year? [~ Yes ™ No

5 Enter the names, addresses and employer identification number (EIN) of all section 527 political organizations to which the filing
organization made payments For each organization listed, enter the amount paid from the filing organization’s funds Also enter the
amount of political contributions received that were promptly and directly delivered to a separate political organization, such as a
separate segregated fund or a political action committee (PAC) If additional space I1s needed, provide information in Part IV

(b) Address (c) EIN (d) Amount paid from
filing organization's

funds If none, enter-0-

(a) Name

(e) Amount of political
contributions received
and promptly and
directly delivered to a
separate political
organization If none,
enter -0-

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ.

Cat No 50084S Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013



Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013

Page 2

m Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3) and filed Form 5768 (election

under section 501(h)).

A Check m[ Ifthe filing organization belongs to an affiliated group (and list in Part IV each affiliated group member's name, address, EIN,

expenses, and share of excess lobbying expenditures)
B Check M| ifthe filing organization checked box A and "limited control" provisions apply

Limits on Lobbying Expendit_ure; or(_;(aazé;ltlrogn's (b) :rfg'llj'stEd
(The term "expenditures” means amounts paid or incurred.) totals totals
la Total lobbying expenditures to influence public opinion (grass roots lobbying)
b Total lobbying expenditures to influence a legislative body (direct lobbying)
c Total lobbying expenditures (add lines 1a and 1b)
d Other exempt purpose expenditures
e Total exempt purpose expenditures (add lines 1c and 1d)
f Lobbying nontaxable amount Enter the amount from the following table in both
columns
If the amount on line le, column (a) or (b) is: The lobbying nontaxable amount is:
Not over $500,000 20% of the amount on line 1le
Over $500,000 but not over $1,000,000 $100,000 plus 15% of the excess over $500,000
Over $1,000,000 but not over $1,500,000 $175,000 plus 10% of the excess over $1,000,000
Over $1,500,000 but not over $17,000,000 $225,000 plus 5% of the excess over $1,500,000
Over $17,000,000 $1,000,000
Grassroots nontaxable amount (enter 25% of line 1f)
h Subtractline 1g from line 1a If zero orless, enter-0-
i Subtractline 1ffrom line 1¢c If zero or less, enter -0-
j Ifthere 1s an amount other than zero on either line 1h or line 11, did the organization file Form 4720 reporting
section 4911 tax for this year? [~ Yes [~ No

4-Year Averaging Period Under Section 50

1(h)

(Some organizations that made a section 501(h) election do not have to complete all of the five
columns below. See the instructions for lines 2a through 2f on page 4.)

Lobbying Expenditures During 4-Year Averaging Period

Calendar year (or fiscal year

beginning in) (a) 2010 (b) 2011

(c) 2012

(d) 2013

(e) Total

2a Lobbying nontaxable amount

b Lobbying ceiling amount
(150% of line 2a, column(e))

c Total lobbying expenditures

d Grassroots nontaxable amount

e Grassroots ceiling amount
(150% of ine 2d, column (e))

f Grassroots lobbying expenditures

Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013
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Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(3) and has NOT
filed Form 5768 (election under section 501(h)).
For each "Yes" response to lines 1a through 11 below, provide in Part IV a detailed description of the lobbying (a) (b)
activity. Yes No Amount
1 During the year, did the filing organization attempt to influence foreign, national, state or local
legislation, including any attempt to influence public opinion on a legislative matter or referendum,
through the use of
a Volunteers? No
b Paid staff or management (include compensation in expenses reported on lines 1c through 11)? No
¢ Media advertisements? No
d Mailings to members, legislators, or the public? No
e Publications, or published or broadcast statements? No
f Grants to other organizations for lobbying purposes? No
g Direct contact with legislators, their staffs, government officials, or a legislative body? Yes 48,000
h Rallies, demonstrations, seminars, conventions, speeches, lectures, or any similar means? No
i Otheractivities? Yes 11,415
j Total Add lines 1c¢ through 11 59,415
2a Did the activities in line 1 cause the organization to be not described Iin section 501(c)(3)? | No

b If"Yes," enter the amount of any tax incurred under section 4912
c If"Yes," enter the amount of any tax incurred by organization managers under section 4912
d Ifthe filing organization incurred a section 4912 tax, did it file Form 4720 for this year?

m Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(4), section 501(c)(5), or section

501(c)(6).

1 Were substantially all (90% or more) dues received nondeductible by members?
2 Did the organization make only In-house lobbying expenditures of $2,000 or less?
3 Did the organization agree to carry over lobbying and political expenditures from the prior year?

Yes | No

1

2

3

-1adeegd:] Complete if the organization is exempt under section 501(c)(4), section 501(c)(5), or section
501(c)(6) and if either (a) BOTH Part III-A, lines 1 and 2, are answered "No" OR (b) Part III-A,

line 3, is answered “Yes."”

1 Dues, assessments and similar amounts from members

2 Section 162(e) nondeductible lobbying and political expenditures (do not include amounts of political
expenses for which the section 527(f) tax was paid).

a Current year
Carryover from last year
Total

3 Aggregate amount reported in section 6033(e)(1)(A) notices of nondeductible section 162(e) dues

4 If notices were sent and the amount on line 2c exceeds the amount on line 3, what portion of the excess

does the organization agree to carryover to the reasonable estimate of nondeductible lobbying and
political expenditure next year?

5 Taxable amount of lobbying and political expenditures (see Iinstructions)

1

2a

2b

2c

Part IV Supplemental Information

Provide the descriptions required for Part I-A, line 1, Part |I-B, ine 4, Part|-C, line 5, Part I1-A (affiliated group list), Part II-A, line 2, and

PartIl-B, ine 1 Also, complete this part for any additional information

Return Reference Explanation

PART II-B,LINE 1 LINET - OTHERACTIVITIES THE PORTION OF DUES PAID TO OTHER ORGANIZATIONS

WHICH WAS USED FOR LOBBYING

Schedule C (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013
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Part IV Supplemental Information (continued)

Return Reference

Explanation
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SCHEDULE D
(Form 990)

OMB No 1545-0047

Supplemental Financial Statements

k= Complete if the organization answered "Yes," to Form 990, 20 1 3
Part IV, line 6, 7, 8, 9, 10, 11a, 11b, 11c, 11d, 11e, 11f, 12a, or 12b

Department of the Treasury k- Attach to Form 990. - See separate instructions. * Information about Schedule D (Form 990) e sI-1 [ Lol {111 e
Intemal Revenue Service and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990. Inspection

Name of the organization Employer identification number

CRAIG HOSPITAL

84-0404233

m Organizations Maintaining Donor Advised Funds or Other Similar Funds or Accounts. Complete If the

organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 6.

1
2
3
4
5

(a) Donor advised funds (b) Funds and other accounts

Total number at end of year

Aggregate contributions to (during year)

Aggregate grants from (during year)

Aggregate value at end of year

Did the organization inform all donors and donor advisors In writing that the assets held in donor advised
funds are the organization's property, subject to the organization's exclusive legal control? [~ Yes ™ No

Did the organization inform all grantees, donors, and donor advisors 1n writing that grant funds can be
used only for charitable purposes and not for the benefit of the donor or donor advisor, or for any other purpose
conferring iImpermissible private benefit? [~ Yes ™ No

m Conservation Easements. Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 7.

1

a 0N T o

Purpose(s) of conservation easements held by the organization (check all that apply)
[T Preservation of land for public use (e g, recreation or education) [ Preservation of an historically important land area
[T Protection of natural habitat [T Preservation of a certified historic structure

[~ Preservation of open space

Complete lines 2a through 2d iIf the organization held a qualified conservation contribution in the form of a conservation
easement on the last day of the tax year

Held at the End of the Year

Total number of conservation easements 2a
Total acreage restricted by conservation easements 2b
Number of conservation easements on a certified historic structure included in (a) 2c

Number of conservation easements included in (¢) acquired after 8/17/06, and noton a
historic structure listed in the National Register 2d

Number of conservation easements modified, transferred, released, extinguished, or terminated by the organization during

the tax year &

Number of states where property subject to conservation easement 1s located &

Does the organization have a written policy regarding the periodic monitoring, inspection, handling of violations, and
enforcement of the conservation easements 1t holds? [~ Yes [~ No

Staff and volunteer hours devoted to monitoring, inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
[

Amount of expenses Incurred In monitoring, Inspecting, and enforcing conservation easements during the year
L

Does each conservation easement reported on line 2(d) above satisfy the requirements of section 170(h)(4 )(B)(1)
and section 170(h)(4 )(B)(11)? [ Yes [ No

In Part XIII, describe how the organization reports conservation easements In its revenue and expense statement, and
balance sheet, and include, If applicable, the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes
the organization’s accounting for conservation easements

m Organizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets.

Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part 1V, line 8.

la

b

If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), not to report In its revenue statement and balance sheet
works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
service, provide, in Part XIII, the text of the footnote to its financial statements that describes these items

If the organization elected, as permitted under SFAS 116 (ASC 958), to report in its revenue statement and balance sheet
works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets held for public exhibition, education, or research in furtherance of public
service, provide the following amounts relating to these items

() Revenues included in Form 990, Part VIII, ine 1 3

(ii) Assets included in Form 990, Part X L]

If the organization received or held works of art, historical treasures, or other similar assets for financial gain, provide the
following amounts required to be reported under SFAS 116 (ASC 958) relating to these items

Revenues included in Form 990, Part VIII, line 1 3

Assets Included in Form 990, Part X 3

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 52283D Schedule D (Form 990) 2013
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Manizations Maintaining Collections of Art, Historical Treasures, or Other Similar Assets (continued)

Page 2

3 Using the organization’s acquisition, accession, and other records, check any of the following that are a significant use of its
collection items (check all that apply)
a [~ Public exhibition d [T Loan or exchange programs
b [ Scholarly research e [ Other
c l_ Preservation for future generations
4 Provide a description of the organization’s collections and explain how they further the organization’s exempt purpose In
Part XIII
5 During the year, did the organization solicit or receive donations of art, historical treasures or other similar
assets to be sold to raise funds rather than to be maintained as part of the organization’s collection? [ Yes ™ No
i-14®A"A Escrow and Custodial Arrangements. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990,
Part IV, line 9, or reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 21.
la Is the organization an agent, trustee, custodian or other intermediary for contributions or other assets not
included on Form 990, Part X? [ Yes [ No
b If"Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIII and complete the following table
Amount
€ Beginning balance 1c
d  Additions during the year id
€ Distributions during the year le
f  Ending balance 1f
2a Did the organization include an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 217 [~ Yes [~ No
b r

If "Yes," explain the arrangement in Part XIII Check here If the explanation has been provided in Part XIII

Endowment Funds. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, lne 10.

la

3a

b
a4

(a)Current year (b)Prior year b (c)Two years back| (d)Three years back | (e)Four years back

Beginning of year balance 2,980,065 1,610,984 5,660,063 5,891,806 5,504,902
Contributions 8,000 1,421,364 13,940 16,145 39,957
Net investment earnings, gains, and losses

166,189 249,411 919,369 -244,941 346,947
Grants or scholarships
Other expenditures for facilities 64 881 301 694 4982 388 5 947
and programs ! ! 1R !
Administrative expenses
End of year balance 3,089,373 2,980,065 1,610,984 5,660,063 5,891,806
Provide the estimated percentage of the current year end balance (line 1g, column (a)) held as
Board designated or quasi-endowment
Permanent endowment & 81 000 %
Temporarily restricted endowment & 19000 %
The percentages In lines 2a, 2b, and 2¢c should equal 100%
Are there endowment funds not in the possession of the organization that are held and administered for the
organization by Yes | No
(i) unrelated organizations 3a(i) No
(ii) related organizations e e e e e e e e e 3a(ii) | Yes
If"Yes" to 3a(n), are the related organizations listed as required on Schedule R? 3b Yes

Describe in Part XIII the intended uses of the organization's endowment funds

m Land, Buildings, and Equipment. Complete If the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line

11a. See Form 990, Part X, line 10.

Description of property (a) Cost or other | (b)Cost or other | (c) Accumulated (d) Book value
basis (Investment) basis (other) depreciation
1a Land 6,651,278 6,651,278
b Buildings 82,146,141 14,828,107 67,318,034
c Leasehold improvements
d Equipment 50,736,635 30,994,642 19,741,993
e Other e e e e e e e e e e e 7,740,220 347,002 7,393,218
Total. Add lines 1a through 1e (Column (d) must equal Form 990, Part X, column (B), line 10(c).) L3 101,104,523

Schedule D (Form 990) 2013
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m Investments—Other Securities. Complete If the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 11b.
See Form 990, Part X, ne 12.

(a) Description of security or category (b)Book value
(including name of security)

(c) Method of valuation
Cost or end-of-year market value

(1)Financial derivatives

(2)Closely-held equity Interests
Other

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) lne 12 ) *

Investments—Program Related. Complete If the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 11c.
See Form 990, Part X, line 13,

(a) Description of Investment (b) Book value

(c) Method of valuation
Cost or end-of-year market value

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) line 13) *

Other Assets. Complete If the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 11d See Form 990, Part X, line 15
(a) Description (b) Book value

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col.(B) line 15.) ]

Other Liabilities. Complete If the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 11e or 11f. See
Form 990, Part X, line 25.

1 (a) Description of liability (b) Book value

Federal iIncome taxes

Total. (Column (b) must equal Form 990, Part X, col (B) Ine 25) m

2. Liability for uncertain tax positions In Part XIII, provide the text of the footnote to the organization's financial statements that

reports the organization's liability for uncertain tax positions under FIN 48 (ASC 740) Check here If the text of the footnote has been
provided in Part XIII 2

Schedule D (Form 990) 2013
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m Reconciliation of Revenue per Audited Financial Statements With Revenue per Return Complete If
the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part 1V, line 12a.

Total revenue, gains, and other support per audited financial statements 1 92,541,531
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, Part VIII, line 12
a Net unrealized gains on investments 2a -344 920
b Donated services and use of facilities 2b
c Recoveries of prior year grants 2c
d Other (Describe in Part XIII ) 2d -5,576,846
e Add lines 2a through 2d 2e -5,921,766
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 3 98,463,297
4 Amounts included on Form 990, Part VIII, ine 12, but noton line 1
Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b 4a 138,065
Other (Describe in Part XIII ) 4b 262,005
c Add lines 4a and 4b 4c 400,070
5 Total revenue Add lines 3 and 4c. (This must equal Form 990, PartI, line 12 ) . 5 98,863,367
m Reconciliation of Expenses per Audited Financial Statements W|th Expenses per Return. Complete
if the organization answered 'Yes' to Form 990, Part IV, line 12a.
Total expenses and losses per audited financial statements 1 79,652,108
2 Amounts included on line 1 but not on Form 990, PartIX, line 25
a Donated services and use of facilities 2a
b Prior year adjustments 2b
c Other losses 2c
d Other (Describe in Part XIII ) 2d -285,378
e Add lines 2a through 2d 2e -285,378
3 Subtract line 2e from line 1 3 79,937,486
4 Amounts included on Form 990, PartIX, line 25, but not on line 1:
Investment expenses not included on Form 990, Part VIII, line 7b 4a 138,065
Other (Describe in Part XIII ) 4b
c Add lines 4a and 4b 4c 138,065
Total expenses Add lines 3 and 4¢. (This must equal Form 990, PartI, line 18 ) 5 80,075,551

m Supplemental Information

Provide the descriptions required for Part II, ines 3,5, and 9, Part III, lines 1a and 4, Part IV, lines 1b and 2b,

PartV, line 4, Part X, line 2, Part XI, lines 2d and 4b, and Part XII, ines 2d and 4b Also complete this part to provide any additional

information

Return Reference

Explanation

PART V, LINE 4

PURPOSES

ENDOWMENT FUNDS, WHICH ARE HELD BY THE CRAIG HOSPITAL FOUNDATION, A RELATED
ORGANIZATION, SERVE A VARIETY OF PURPOSES INCLUDING SUPPORTING GRADUATES,
PATIENT ASSISTANCE PROGRAMS, PRESIDENT'S LEADERSHIP FUND AND GENERAL

PART X, LINE 2

THE HOSPITAL APPLIES A MORE-LIKELY-THAN-NOT MEASUREMENT METHODOLOGY TO
REFLECT THE FINANCIAL STATEMENT IMPACT OF UNCERTAIN TAX POSITIONS TAKEN OR
EXPECTED TO BE TAKEN IN A TAX RETURN AFTER EVALUATING THE TAX POSITIONS
TAKEN, NONE ARE CONSIDERED UNCERTAIN, THEREFORE NO AMOUNTS HAVE BEEN
RECOGNIZED AS OF SEPTEMBER 30,2014 AND 2013 IFINCURRED,INTEREST AND
PENALTIES ASSOCIATED WITH THE TAX POSITIONS ARE RECORDED IN THE PERIOD
ASSESSEDIN OTHER PROGRAMS AND COST NO INTEREST ORPENALTIES HAVE BEEN

ASSESSED AS OF SEPTEMBER 30,2014 AND 2013 TAX YEARS THAT REMAIN SUBJECT TO
EXAMINATION INCLUDE 2011 THROUGH THE CURRENT PERIOD FOR THE FEDERAL RETURN
AND 2010 THROUGH CURRENT PERIOD FORTHE COLORADO RETURN

PART XI,LINE 2D - OTHER

FAS 136 RESTATEMENT - FOUNDATION NET INCOME -5,576,846

ADIJUSTMENTS

PART XI,LINE 4B - OTHER SUBSIDY FROM FOUNDATION 285,395 RDS NET INCOME -23,390
ADIJUSTMENTS

PART XII,LINE 2D - OTHER SUBSIDY FROM FOUNDATION -285,395 MISC RECLASS 17
ADIJUSTMENTS

Schedule D (Form 990) 2013
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m Supplemental Information (continued)

Return Reference

Explanation
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OMB No

1545-0047

SCHEDULE H Hospitals
(Form 990)

k- Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, question 20.
k- Attach to Form 990. - See separate instructions.

Department of the Treasury
Intemal Revenue Service

Name of the organization
CRAIG HOSPITAL

2013

k- Information about Schedule H (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov /form990. Open to Public
Inspection

Employer identification number

84-0404233
m Financial Assistance and Certain Other Community Benefits at Cost
Yes | No
1a Did the organization have a financial assistance policy during the tax year? If "No," skip to question 6a 1a | Yes
b If"Yes," was it a written policy? 1b | Yes
2 Ifthe organization had multiple hospital facilities, indicate which of the following best describes application of the
financial assistance policy to its various hospital facilities during the tax year
I_ Applied uniformly to all hospital facilities I_ Applied uniformly to most hospital facilities
I_ Generally taillored to individual hospital facilities
3 Answerthe following based on the financial assistance eligibility criteria that applied to the largest number of the
organization's patients during the tax year
a Did the organization use Federal Poverty Guidelines (FPG) as a factor in determining eligibility for providing free care?
If "Yes," indicate which of the following was the FPG family income limit for eligibility for free care 3a | Yes
™ 100% I 150%™ 200% ¥ other 30000 0000000000 %
b Did the organization use FPG as a factor in determining eligibility for providing discounted care? If "Yes," indicate
which of the following was the family income limit for eligibility for discounted care 3b | ves
I 200% I 250%™ 300%™ 350% [ 400% ¥ other 50000 0000000000 %
c Ifthe organization used factors other than FPG in determining eligibility, describe in Part VI the income based
criteria for determining eligibility for free or discounted care Include in the description whether the organization
used an asset test or other threshold, regardless of iIncome, as a factor in determining eligibility for free or
discounted care
4 Did the organization's financial assistance policy that applied to the largest number of its patients during the tax year]
provide for free or discounted care to the "medically indigent"? P e e e e e e e e 4 | Yes
5a Did the organization budget amounts for free or discounted care provided under its financial assistance policy during
the tax year? 5a | Yes
b If"Yes," did the organization's financial assistance expenses exceed the budgeted amount? 5b No
c If"Yes" toline 5b, as a result of budget considerations, was the organization unable to provide free or discounted
care to a patient who was eligibile for free or discounted care? 5c
6a Did the organization prepare a community benefit report during the tax year? 6a No
b If"Yes," did the organization make it available to the public? 6b
Complete the following table using the worksheets provided in the Schedule H instructions Do not submit these
worksheets with the Schedule H
7 Financial Assistance and Certain Other Community Benefits at Cost
Financial Assistance and | (@) Numberof| by persons (c) Total community (d) Direct offsetting (e) Net community benefit | (f) Percent of
Means-Tested activities or served benefit expense revenue expense total expense
programs
Government Programs (optional) (optional)
a Financial Assistance at cost
(from Worksheet 1) . 684,496 0 684,496 0 850 %
b Medicad (from Worksheet 3,
column a) ... 7,567,542 3,415,113 4,152,429 5190 %
¢ Costs of other means-teste
government programs (from
Worksheet 3, column b)
d Total Financial Assistance
and Means-Tested
Government Programs 8,252,038 3,415,113 4,836,925 6 040 %
Other Benefits
e Community health
|mprovement services and
community benefit operations
(from Worksheet 4) 605,784 0 605,784 0 760 %
f Health professions education
(from Worksheet 5) 107,458 0 107,458 0 130 %
g Subsidized health services
(from Worksheet 6)
h Research (from Worksheet 7) 2,708,552 2,708,552
1 Cash and in-kind
contributions for community
benefit (from Worksheet 8) 109,325 0 109,325 0 140 %
] Total. Other Benefits 3,531,119 2,708,552 822,567 1 030 %
k Total. Add lines 7d and 7) 11,783,157 6,123,665 5,659,492 7 070 %

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 50192T

Schedule H (Form 990) 2013
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Im Community Building Activities Complete this table If the organmization conducted any community building
activities during the tax year, and describe in Part VI how its community building activities promoted the health
of the communities It serves.

(a) Number of (b) Persons (c) Total community (d) Direct offsetting (e) Net community (f) Percent of
activities or  [|served (optional) building expense revenue building expense total expense
programs
(optional)
1  Physical mprovements and housing
2 Economic development
3 Community support
4 Environmental improvements
Leadership development and training
for community members
6 Coalition building
Community health iImprovement
advocacy
8  Workforce development
9 Other
10 Total
m Bad Debt, Medicare, & Collection Practices
Section A. Bad Debt Expense Yes | No
1 Did the organization report bad debt expense in accordance with Heathcare Financial Management Associlation
Statement No 152 . . . . . . e e e e e e e e e e e e e e 1 No
2 Enter the amount of the organization's bad debt expense Explain in Part VI the
methodology used by the organization to estimate this amount . . . . . . 2 46,441

3 Enter the estimated amount of the organization's bad debt expense attributable to
patients eligible under the organization's financial assistance policy Explainin Part VI
the methodology used by the organization to estimate this amount and the rationale, If
any, for including this portion of bad debt as community benefit . . . . . . 3 0

4 Provide in Part VI the text of the footnote to the organization’s financial statements that describes bad debt expense
or the page number on which this footnote Is contained in the attached financial statements

Section B. Medicare

5 Enter total revenue received from Medicare (including DSH andIME) . . . . . 5 5,125,569
6 Enter Medicare allowable costs of care relating to paymentsonline5 . . . . .| 6 8,380,921
7 Subtract line 6 from line 5 This Is the surplus (or shortfall) . . . . . . . .| 7 -3,255,352
8 Describe in Part VI the extent to which any shortfall reported in line 7 should be treated as community benefit

Also describe in Part VI the costing methodology or source used to determine the amount reported on line 6
Check the box that describes the method used

I_ Cost accounting system I_ Cost to charge ratio I7 Other
Section C. Collection Practices

9a Did the organization have a written debt collection policy during the tax year? . . . . . . . . . . 9a No

b If"Yes," did the organization’s collection policy that applied to the largest number of its patients during the tax year
contain provisions on the collection practices to be followed for patients who are known to qualify for financial
assistance? DescribeinPartvl . . . T T T 9b

Part IV ] nagement Compa nies and Joint Ve NtUre s (owned 10% or more by officers, directors, trustees, key employees, and physicians—see Instructions)

(a) Name of entity (b) Description of primary (c) Organization's (d) Officers, directors, (e) Physicians'
activity of entity profit % or stock trustees, or key profit % or stock
ownership % employees' profit % ownership %
or stock ownership %

10

11

12

13

Schedule H (Form 990) 2013
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Facility Information

Section A. Hospital Facilities

13yi0-43

(hst in order of size from largest to

smallest—see Instructions)

How many hospital facilities did the

organization operate during the tax year?
1

[EpdEaL pasuEaa]
Epd=oy & ua4p|iyg
[pdsoy Gunama |
Ajpae) oy
84Ny +F—H3

Eudsoy 882208 B30

Name, address, primary website address,
and state license number

See Additional Data Table

o115 g EIpawl ElaUes)

Other (Describe) | Facility reporting group
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Facility Information (continued)

Section B. Facility Policies and Practices

(Complete a separate Section B for each of the hospital facilities or facility reporting groups listed in Part V, Section A)
CRAIG HOSPITAL

Name of hospital facility or facility reporting group

If reporting on Part V, Section B for a single hospital facility only: line number of
hospital facility (from Schedule H, Part V, Section A)

Yes| No

Community Health Needs Assessment (Lines 1 through 8c are optional for tax years begining on or before March 23, 2012)

1 During the tax year or either of the two |mmed|ate|y preceding tax years, did the hospital facility conduct a community
health needs assessment (CHNA)? If "No," skiptoline9 . . . e 1 |Yes

If "Yes," indicate what the CHNA report describes (check all that apply)

a |7 A definition of the community served by the hospital facility
|7 Demographics of the community

c |7 Existing health care facilities and resources within the community that are available to respond to the health needs of
the community

|7 How data was obtained
|7 The health needs of the community
f |7 Primary and chronic disease needs and other health iIssues of uninsured persons, low-income persons, and minority
groups
g |7 The process for identifying and prioritizing community health needs and services to meet the community health needs
h |7 The process for consulting with persons representing the community’s interests
i |7 Information gaps that limit the hospital facility’s ability to assess the community’s health needs
j |_ Other (describe in Part VI)
2 Indicate the tax yearthe hospital facility last conducted a CHNA 2012

3 Inconducting its most recent CHNA, did the hospital facility take into account input from persons who represent the broad
Interests of the community served by the hospital facility, including those with special knowledge of or expertise in public
health? If "Yes," describe in Part VI how the hospital facility took into account input from persons who represent the
community, and identify the persons the hospital faC|I|ty

consulted. . . . 3 [Yes
4 Was the hospital faC|I|ty s CHNA conducted W|th one or more other hosp|ta| facilities? If "Yes," list the other hospital

facilities iInPartVI . . . C o e e e e e e 4 No
5 Did the hospital facility make its CHNA report W|der avallable to the publlc? . e e e e e e e . 5 |Yes

If "Yes," indicate howthe CHNA report was made widely available (check all that apply)
|7 Hospital facility’s website (list url) WWW CRAIGHOSPITAL ORG

I_ Other website (list url)
|7 Available upon request from the hospital facility
I_ Other (describe iInPart VI)

6 Ifthe hospital facility addressed needs identified in its most recently conducted CHNA, indicate how (check all that apply
as of the end of the tax year)

a n T o

a |7 Adoption of an Implementation strategy that addresses each of the community health needs identified through the
CHNA

b |7 Execution of the implementation strategy

c |7 Participation in the development of a community-wide plan

d |7 Participation in the execution of a community-wide plan

e |7 Inclusion of a community benefit section in operational plans

f |7 Adoption of a budget for provision of services that address the needs identified in the CHNA

g |7 Prioritization of health needs I1n 1ts community

h |7 Prioritization of services that the hospital facility will undertake to meet health needs in its community

i |_ Other (describe in Part VI)
7 Did the hospital facility address all of the needs 1dentified in its most recently conducted CHNA? If "No," explain in Part VI

which needs It has not addressed and the reasons why It has not addressed suchneeds. . . . 7 |Yes
8a Did the organization incur an excise tax under section 4959 for the hospital facility's failure to conduct a CHNA as
required by section 501(r(3)? . v v v v v e v e e e e e e e e e 8a No
b If"Yes" to line 8a, did the organization file Form 4720 to report the section 4959 excise tax?. . . . . 8b

c If"Yes" to line 8b, what Is the total amount of section 4959 excise tax the organization reported on Form 4720 for all of its
hospital facilities? $

Schedule H (Form 990) 2013
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Facility Information (continued)

Financial Assistance Policy Yes | No
9 Did the hospital facility have in place during the tax year a written financial assistance policy that

Explained eligibility criteria for financial assistance, and whether such assistance includes free or discounted care? 9 |Yes
10 Used federal poverty guidelines (FPG) to determine eligibility for providing free care? . . . f e e e e e 10 | Yes

If"Yes," indicate the FPG family income limit for eligibility for free care 300 000000000000%
If "No," explainin Part VI the criteria the hospital facility used
11 Used FPG to determine eligibility for providing discounted care? . . e e . 11 | Yes
If "Yes," indicate the FPG family income limit for eligibility for discounted care 500 000000000000%
If "No," explain in Part VI the criteria the hospital facility used
Explained the basis for calculating amounts charged to patients? . . . . . . . . . . . .« .« . . . . 12 | Yes

=
N

If "Yes," indicate the factors used in determining such amounts (check all that apply)
|7 Income level

a
b |7 Asset level

c |7 Medical indigency

d I_ Insurance status

e |7 Uninsured discount

f |7 Medicaid/Medicare

g |7 State regulation

h |_ Residency

i |70ther(descr|be|n Part VI)
13 Explained the method for applying for financial assistance? . . . . . . .+ .« « v « W« « & 4 4 4 . . 13 | Yes
14 Included measures to publicize the policy within the community served by the hospital facility? . . . . . . . 14 | Yes

If "Yes," indicate how the hospital facility publicized the policy (check all that apply)

a |7 The policy was posted on the hospital facility’s website

b |_ The policy was attached to billing invoices

c |_ The policy was posted in the hospital facility’s emergency rooms or waiting rooms

d |_ The policy was posted in the hospital facility’s admissions offices

e |_ The policy was provided, in writing, to patients on admission to the hospital facility

f |7 The policy was available upon request

g |7 Other (describe in Part VI)

Billing and Collections

15 Did the hospital facility have in place during the tax year a separate billing and collections policy, or a written financial
assistance policy (FAP) that explained actions the hospital facility may take upon non-payment? . . . . 15 | Yes

16 Check all of the following actions against an individual that were permitted under the hospital facility's poI|C|es durlng
the tax year before making reasonable efforts to determine the individual’s eligibility under the facility’s FAP

I_ Reporting to credit agency

I_ Lawsuits

|_ Liens on residences

I_ Body attachments

I_ Other similar actions (describe in Section C)

o & n T O

17 Did the hospital facility or an authorized third party perform any of the following actions during the tax year before
making reasonable efforts to determine the individual’s eligibility under the facility’s FAP? . . . . . . . . . .17 No

If "Yes," check all actions in which the hospital facility or a third party engaged
a I_ Reporting to credit agency
b |_ Lawsuits
c |_ Liens on residences
d I_ Body attachments
e I_ Other similar actions (describe in Section C)

Schedule H (Form 990) 2013
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Facility Information (continued)
18 Indicate which efforts the hospital facility made before initiating any of the actions listed in line 17 (check all that apply)
a |7 Notified individuals of the financial assistance policy on admission
b |7 Notified individuals of the financial assistance policy prior to discharge
c |7 Notified individuals of the financial assistance policy iIn communications with the individuals regarding the individuals’bills
d |7 Documented its determination of whether individuals were eligible for financial assistance under the hospital facility’s
financial assistance policy
e |_ Other (describe in Section C)
Policy Relating to Emergency Medical Care
Yes| No
19 Did the hospital facility have in place during the tax year a written policy relating to emergency medical care that requires
the hospital facility to provide, without discrimination, care for emergency medical conditions to individuals regardless of
their eligibility under the hospital facility’s financial assistance policy? 19 No
If "No," indicate why
a |7 The hospital facility did not provide care for any emergency medical conditions
b |_ The hospital facility’s policy was not in writing
c |_ The hospital facility Iimited who was eligible to receive care for emergency medical conditions (describe in Part VI)
d |_ Other (describe in Part VI)
Charges to Individuals Eligible for Assistance under the FAP (FAP-Eligible Individuals)
20 Indicate how the hospital facility determined, during the tax year, the maximum amounts that can be charged to FAP-
eligible individuals for emergency or other medically necessary care
a |_ The hospital facility used 1ts lowest negotiated commercial insurance rate when calculating the maximum amounts that
can be charged
b |_ The hospital facility used the average of its three lowest negotiated commercial insurance rates when calculating the
maximum amounts that can be charged
c |_ The hospital facility used the Medicare rates when calculating the maximum amounts that can be charged
|7 Other (describe iInPart VI)
21 During the tax year, did the hospital facility charge any FAP-eligible individual to whom the hospital facility provided
emergency or other medically necessary services more than the amounts generally billed to individuals who had insurance
covering such care? . 21 No
If"Yes," explain in Part VI
22 During the tax year, did the hospital facility charge any FAP-eligible individual an amount equal to the gross charge for any
service provided to that individual? . 22 No

If"Yes," explain in Part VI

Schedule H (Form 990) 2013
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Facility Information (continued)

Section C. Supplemental Information for Part V, Section B.Provide descriptions required for Part V, Section B, lines
1y, 3,4, 5d, 61, 7, 10, 11, 121, 14q, 16e, 17¢, 18e, 19¢, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22. If applicable, provide separate descriptions
for each facility 1n a facility reporting group, designated by "Facility A," "Facility B," etc.

Form and Line Reference Explanation

See Additional Data Table

Schedule H (Form 990) 2013



Schedule H (Form 990) 2013 Page 8 2
Facility Information (continued)

Section D. Other Health Care Facilities That Are Not Licensed, Registered, or Similarly Recognized as a
Hospital Facility
(hst in order of size, from largest to smallest)

How many non-hospital health care facilities did the organization operate during the tax year?

Name and address Type of Facility (describe)

O O NGOV HWN R

[y
o
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m Supplemental Information

Provide the following information

1 Required descriptions. Provide the descriptions required for Part I, lines 3¢, 6a,and 7, PartII and PartIII, ines 2, 3,4, 8 and 9b
Needs assessment. Describe how the organization assesses the health care needs of the communities 1t serves, in addition to any
CHNASs reported Iin Part V, Section B

3 Patient education of eligibility for assistance. Describe how the organization informs and educates patients and persons who may
be billed for patient care about their eligibility for assistance under federal, state, or local government programs or under the
organization’s financilal assistance policy

4 Community information. Describe the community the organization serves, taking into account the geographic area and demographic
constituents It serves

5 Promotion of community health. Provide any other information important to describing how the organization’s hospital facilities or
other health care facilities further its exempt purpose by promoting the health of the community (e g, open medical staff, community
board, use of surplus funds, etc )

6 Affiliated health care system. If the organization 1s part of an affiliated health care system, describe the respective roles of the
organization and its affiliates in promoting the health of the communities served

7 State filing of community benefit report. If applicable, identify all states with which the organization, or a related organization, files
a community benefit report

Form and Line Reference Explanation
PART I,LN 7 COL(F) BAD DEBT EXPENSE IS RECORDED WHEN ALLINTERNAL COLLECTION EFFORTS HAVE BEEN

EXHAUSTED AND THE ACCOUNT IS FLAGGED AS DELINQUENT ANY RECOVERIES ARE
NETTED AGAINST EXPENSE BASED ON THE COMMUNITY THAT WE SERVE,IT IS OFTEN
DIFFICULT FORPATIENTS TO FULFILL THEIR PAYMENT OBLIGATION DUE TO THEIR
CURRENT AND FUTURE OUT OF POCKET HEALTH CARE COSTS RELATED TO THEIR
DISABILITY AND THE POSSIBLE IMPACT ON THEIR ABILITY TO EARN INCOME




Form and Line Reference

Explanation

PART III,LINE 2

[THE HOSPITAL CONTINUED TO FOLLOWTHE PRESENTATION AND DISCLOSURE OF PATIENT
SERVICE REVENUE, PROVISION FOR BAD DEBTS AND THE ALLOWANCE FOR DOUBTFUL
IACCOUNTS AS PRONOUNCED IN ACCOUNTING STANDARDS UPDATES (ASU) #2011-07 AND
INACCOUNTING STANDARDS CODIFICATION TOPIC 954 THIS REQUIRES ORGANIZATIONS
THAT DO NOT ACCESS THE COLLECTABILITY OF A RECEIVABLE PRIORTO RECOGNIZING
REVENUE TO PRESENT THEIR PROVISION FOR BAD DEBT RELATED TO PATIENT SERVICE
REVENUE AS A DEDUCTION FROM REVENUE, NET OF ANY CONTRACTUAL ALLOWANCES AND
DISCOUNTS ON THEIR STATEMENT OF OPERATIONS THE ADOPTION OF THIS DID NOT
IMPACT THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS AS THE HOSPITAL DOES NOT RECOGNIZE

SIGNIFICANT REVENUE WITHOUT ASSESSING A PATIENT'S ABILITY TO PAY




Form and Line Reference

Explanation

PART III,LINE 8

THE SOURCE OF DATA IS FILED MEDICARE COST REPORT MEDICARE PAYMENT RECEIVED

IS INSUFFICIENT TO COVER COSTS OF PROVIDING CARE




Form and Line Reference

Explanation

PART VI, LINE 2

IN ADDITION TO CONDUCTING ITS ANNUAL CHNA, CRAIGHOSPITAL ASSESSES
COMMUNITY NEEDS THROUGH A VARIETY OF DIFFERENT PROGRAMS AS A CONDITION OF
FEDERAL GRANT FUNDING, CRAIG HOSPITAL'S RESEARCH DEPARTMENT CONDUCTS
ONGOING LONGITUDINAL STUDIES ON THE LONG-TERM EFFECTS AND NEEDS OF PERSONS
WITH SPINAL CORD INJURY (SCI)AND BRAIN INJURY CRAIG HOSPITAL ALSO OPERATES A
[TOLL-FREE NURSE ADVICE LINE AND COLLECTS DATA ON WHY FORMER PATIENTS CALL
FOR ASSISTANCE CRAIGHOSPITALALSO COLLABORATES WITH THE BRAIN INJURY
IALLIANCE OF COLORADO,ROCKY MOUNTAIN HUMAN SERVICES, THE HANGOUT, THE
CHRISTOPHER & DANA REEVE PEER NETWORK PROGRAM, AND OTHER COMMUNITY
ORGANIZATIONS TO ASSESS AND MEET THE LONG TERM NEEDS OF CITIZENS WITH
DISABILITIES




Form and Line Reference

Explanation

PART VI, LINE 3

[THE ADMISSIONS DEPARTMENT IDENTIFIES PATIENTS WHO HAVE LIMITED BENEFITS AND
COMPARE THE BENEFITS TO THE ESTIMATED LENGTH OF STAY WHEN THERE IS A
SHORTAGE OF DAYS ALLOWED THROUGH INSURANCE, THE ADMISSIONS DIRECTOR WILL
HAVE A DISCUSSION WITH THE PATIENT/FAMILY TO DETERMINE ALTERNATIVE COVERAGE
THIS DISCUSSION ENCOMPASSES THE PATIENT/FAMILY'S ABILITY TO PAY FOR THE CARE,
POTENTIAL ELIGIBILITY FOR FEDERAL AND STATE PROGRAMS, AND THE CHARITY CARE
PROGRAM UPON ADMISSION TO THE HOSPITAL, THE SOCIAL WORKERS/CASE MANAGERS
COMPLETE A THOROUGH PSYCHO-SOCIAL ASSESSMENT OF THE PATIENT/FAMILY
SPECIFICALLY EXPLORING FINANCIAL STATUS THE CASE MANAGERS CONSIDER HOUSE
HOLD INCOME POST-INJURY, FAMILY SIZE, ASSETS, CURRENT AND FUTURE LIVING
EXPENSES, AND FINANCIAL OBLIGATIONS INCLUDING EXPECTATIONS OF FUTURE CARE
NEEDS THE CASE MANAGERS, ALONG WITH THE PATIENT/FAMILY, ASSESS OTHER
POTENTIAL RESOURCES/PROGRAMS FOR WHICH THE PATIENT MAY QUALIFY RESOURCES
IAND PROGRAMS EVALUATED INCLUDE, BUT ARE NOT LIMITED TO MEDICAID, CICP,
VICTIM'S ASSISTANCE, LIABILITY AND LIQUIDITY, ACCIDENTAL DEATH AND
DISMEMBERMENT, AND THE CHARITY CARE PROGRAM IFIT APPEARS ASTHOUGH THE
PATIENT WILL QUALIFY FOR STATE OR FEDERAL PROGRAMS, THE CASE MANAGER WILL
IASSIST THE PATIENT /FAMILY IN COMPLETING THE APPLICATIONS, OBTAINING THE
REQUIRED DOCUMENTATION AND IN ADVISING THEM HOWTO POSITION THEMSELVES TO
QUALIFY IF PATIENTS DO NOT MEET THE CRITERIA FOR OTHER STATE OR FEDERAL
PROGRAMS, THE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE ELIGIBILITY DISCOUNT GUIDELINE IS UTILIZED
TO DETERMINE IF THE PATIENT'S BILL WILL BE DISCOUNTED IF APPROPRIATE, THE CASE
MANAGER WILL INITIATE AND ASSIST THE PATIENT/FAMILY IN COMPLETING THE
FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE APPLICATION FORTHE CHARITY CARE PROGRAM APPLICATIONS
MAY ALSO BE OBTAINED ON THE CRAIG WEBSITE, COMPLETED OVER THE PHONE OR VIA
MAIL IFITISNOT CLEARTHAT THE PATIENT/FAMILY WILL HAVE A BALANCE PRIORTO
DISCHARGE (CO-PAYS,OUT OF POCKET,ETC ) THE PATIENT/FAMILY WILL RECEIVE
INFORMATION ON THE CHARITY CARE PROGRAM WHICH IS NOTED ON THE MONTHLY
BILLING STATEMENTS AND THE COPY OF APPLICATION ALONG WITH LETTER FOR PRE-
COLLECTION AT THIS TIME THE PATIENT CAN COMPLETE THE APPLICATION ALL
IAPPLICATIONS ARE REVIEWED BY THE A/R MANAGER, VICE PRESIDENT OF FINANCE
IAND/OR THE CONTROLLER WHEN IT IS DETERMINED THAT THE CHARITY IS APPROPRIATE,
THIS IS COMMUNICATED TO THE PATIENT/FAMILY BY THE CASE MANAGER OR THE
IACCOUNTS RECEIVABLE MANAGER




Form and Line Reference

Explanation

PART VI, LINE 4

IAS ONE OF THE MOST RECOGNIZED SPECIALTY REHABILITATION AND RESEARCH
HOSPITALS IN THE WORLD FOR PATIENTS WITH SPINAL CORD AND BRAIN INJURY, CRAIG
HOSPITAL CONTRIBUTES TO THE LOCAL, STATE, AND NATIONAL COMMUNITIES IN
MYRIADS OF WAYS IN THE AREAS OF EDUCATION, DISABILITY AWARENESS TRAINING,
HANDICAP ACCESSIBILITY, AND OTHER FORMS OF SUPPORT DURING FY 2014, THE
HOSPITAL PROVIDED FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE, COMMUNITY SUPPORT, AND SUBSIDIZED
HEALTH SERVICES FROM GOVERNMENT PROGRAMS TOTALING $8 91 MILLION AS A NON-
PROFIT FREE STANDING HOSPITAL, CRAIG HOSPITAL HAS 948 FULL-TIME AND PART TIME
EMPLOYEES AND UTILIZES 200 ACTIVE VOLUNTEERS FROM THE COMMUNITY CRAIG
HOSPITALIS THE LARGEST MEDICAL/REHABILITATION HOSPITALIN COLORADO SERVING
PATIENTS WITH SPINAL CORD INJURY (SCI)AND TRAUMATIC BRAIN INJURY (TBI)AND
SERVES THE LARGEST PERCENTAGE OF THE 150 NEWLY INJURED SCI AND 5,000 TBI
PATIENTS PER YEARIN COLORADO, WITH INPATIENT, OUTPATIENT, AND LONG-TERM
FOLLOW-UP SERVICES THERE ARE APPROXIMATELY 2,400 PEOPLE WITH SCI AND 175,000
WITH TBI LIVING IN COLORADO APPROXIMATELY 50% OF CRAIG HOSPITAL'S PATIENTS
IARE COLORADO RESIDENTS WHILE THE REMAINING COME FROM VIRTUALLY EVERY OTHER
STATE, AND EVEN SOME FROM FOREIGN COUNTRIES THE AVERAGE AGE OF OUR PATIENTS
IS 40 YEARS OLD,75% ARE MALE, AND ALL COME FROM VARIED SOCIO-ECONOMIC
BACKGROUNDS CRAIGHOSPITAL PROVIDES SIGNIFICANT SUPPORT TO THE COMMUNITY,
SUPPORTING THE BRAIN INJURY ALLIANCE OF COLORADO, CONDUCTING ANNUAL
OUTPATIENT CLINICSIN PUEBLO AND GRAND JUNCTION,COLORADO AND CASPER,
WYOMING, SERVING ON MULTIPLE BOARDS FOR STATE AGENCIES AND ORGANIZATIONS
(TBI TRUST FUND, DIVISION OF WORKERS COMPENSATION TBI MEDICAL TREATMENT
GUIDELINES, ROCKY MOUNTAIN HUMAN SERVICES, COLORADO BRAIN INJURY
PROFESSIONALS NETWORK, THE HANGOUT NETWORK AND OTHERS), OFFERING FINANCIAL
SCHOLARSHIPS FOR CRAIG GRADUATES" FOR HIGHER EDUCATION, AND FINANCIALLY
SUPPORTING MORE THAN 100 LOCAL, REGIONAL, AND NATIONAL ORGANIZATIONS EACH
YEAR CRAIG HOSPITAL COLLABORATES ON PATIENT RESEARCH AND TECHNOLOGY WITH
SEVERAL LOCAL COLLEGES AND UNIVERSITIES IN THE PAST FIVE YEARS, CRAIG HOSPITAL
HAS SERVED MORE THAN 2,000 INPATIENTS WITH CATASTROPHIC SPINAL CORD AND
BRAIN INJURIES, OF WHICH APPROXIMATELY ONE HALF WERE FROM COLORADO IN THE
SAME TIME PERIOD, CRAIG HOSPITAL SERVED MORE THAN 15,000 OUTPATIENTS, OF
WHICH THREE QUARTERS WERE FROM COLORADO THESE NUMBERS DO NOT INCLUDE
PATIENT SUPPORT SYSTEMS AND COMMUNITY MEMBERS- FAMILIES, FRIENDS, CO -
WORKERS, AND EMPLOYERS IN 2013 CRAIG COMMISSIONED THE UNIVERSITY OF
COLORADO LEEDS SCHOOL OF BUSINESS TO RESEARCH CRAIG'S FINANCIAL COMMUNITY
IMPACT,AND IT IS ESTIMATED THAT IN 2013 CRAIG CONTRIBUTED $155 6 MILLION IN
ECONOMIC IMPACT IN COLORADO CRAIGHOSPITAL'S PATIENT OUTCOMES ARE
SUPERIORIN COMPARISON TO VIRTUALLY EVERY REGIONAL AND NATIONAL AVERAGE IN
[THE MOST IMPORTANT MEASURES OF REHABILITATION OUTCOMES ON AVERAGE, CRAIG
GRADUATES AREMORE DEPENDENT WHEN THEY ARE ADMITTED, FUNCTIONALLY MAKE
GREATER GAINS DURING THEIR INITIAL TREATMENT, ARE DISCHARGED HOME AT HIGHER
RATES, RETURN TO WORK OR SCHOOLIN GREATER NUMBERS, ARE MORE
FUNCTIONALLYINDEPENDENT AND REQUIRE LESS ATTENDANT CARE, HAVE FEWER RE-
HOSPITALIZATIONS, HAVE HIGHER LEVELS OF COMMUNITY REINTEGRATION AND
SATISFACTION WITH LIFE, AND HAVE HIGHER EARNING POWER THAN THEIR
NATIONALPEER GROUP TREATED IN OTHER REHABILITATION PROGRAMS OUR
EXCEPTIONALOUTCOMES VALIDATE THAT REHABILITATION IS AN INVESTMENT IN LONG-
TERM SOCIETAL VALUE WHEN WE HELP PATIENTS BECOME ASINDEPENDENT AND
PRODUCTIVE AS POSSIBLE,IT ISIN THEIR BEST INTEREST-AS WELL ASIN THE BEST
INTEREST OF THEIR FAMILY, EMPLOYER, INSURANCE CARRIER, TAXPAYERS, AND TO THE
COMMUNITY AS A WHOLE CRAIG HAS RECEIVED THE PRESTIGIOUS MAGNET RECOGNITION
FOR QUALITY IN NURSINGIN 2005-2010 AND AGAININ 2011-2015 AND THE MAGNET
PRIZE AWARD IN 2012 CRAIG HAS ALSO BEEN RANKED ASA TOP TEN REHABILITATION
CENTERBY US NEWS AND WORLD REPORT FOR 25 CONSECUTIVE YEARS AND IN 2013 AND
2014 WAS VOTED BY EMPLOYEES AS A "TOP WORK PLACE BY THE DENVER POST
NEWSPAPER ANOTHER RECENT ACCOMPLISHMENT IS THE NURSE ADVICE LINE, WHICH IS A
TOLL FREE NATIONAL ADVICE LINE, WHICH HAS WON NATIONAL AWARDS CRAIG
HOSPITALIS THE FIRST HOSPITALIN COLORADO TO HAVE GROUP SPECIAL LICENSE
PLATES WHICH WERE APPROVED BY THE 2011 LEGISLATURE EACH YEAR, CRAIG HOSPITAL
STAFF AND PHYSICIANS RECEIVE NATIONAL AWARDS, AND IN 2014, CRAIGHOSPITAL
STAFF AND PHYSICIANS WON SEVERAL MAJOR AWARDS CRAIG HOSPITALIS PIONEERING
IADAPTIVE TECHNOLOGY AND CUTTING EDGE TREATMENT, AND IN 2011 CRAIG HOSPITAL
FOUNDED THE PEAK CENTER AT CRAIGHOSPITAL, A STATE-OF-THE ART WELLNESS AND

FITNESS PROGRAM FOR INPATIENTS, OUTPATIENTS, AND COMMUNITY MEMBERSHIPS




Form and Line Reference

Explanation

PART VI, LINE 5

CRAIG HOSPITAL'S PURPOSE ISTO PROVIDE PATIENT CARE, EDUCATION AND RESEARCH
[THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS OF CRAIGHOSPITAL HAS ULTIMATE AUTHORITY IN EXTENDING
PRIVILEGES ONLY TO PROFESSIONALLY COMPETENT PHYSICIANS, DENTISTS AND
PODIATRISTS, LICENSED TO PRACTICE IN THE STATE OF COLORADO THERE ARE 215
PHYSICIANS ON THE MEDICAL STAFF OF CRAIGHOSPITAL, EACH ASSIGNED TO ONE OF
FIVE SEPARATE MEDICAL STAFF CATEGORIES THE MEDICAL STAFF OF CRAIGHOSPITALIS
ORGANIZED AND OPERATES UNDER THE GUIDANCE OF THE MEDICAL STAFF BYLAWS,
MEDICAL STAFF RULES AND REGULATIONS AND MEDICAL STAFF POLICIES AND
PROCEDURES THE ORGANIZED MEDICAL STAFFIS ACCOUNTABLE TO THE GOVERNING
BODY FORTHE QUALITY OF CARE, TREATMENT AND SERVICES PROVIDED TO PATIENTS BY
THE PRACTITIONERS WITH PRIVILEGES THE MEDICAL STAFF IS RESPONSIBLE FOR
ESTABLISHING AND MAINTAINING PATIENT CARE STANDARDS, CREDENTIALING AND
DELINEATION OF CLINICAL PRIVILEGES ADDITIONALLY, THERE ARE 60 ALLIED HEALTH
PROFESSIONALS, CATEGORIZED AS EITHERINDEPENDENT OR PHYSICIAN DIRECTED WHOM
FUNCTION WITHIN ONE OR MORE HEALTH-RELATED PROFESSIONS OR OCCUPATIONS THE
HOSPITAL USES EXCESS FUNDS TO FUND CAPITALIMPROVEMENTS, EQUIPMENT FOR
PATIENT PROGRAMS, AND PATIENT EDUCATION THE HOSPITAL PROVIDES LONG-TERM
COMMUNITY SUPPORT THROUGH MULTIPLE PROGRAMS SUCH AS -TOLL-FREE NURSE
IADVICE LINE-ON-LINE FREE EDUCATIONAL MATERIALS RESOURCE LIBRARY TOOLON
CRAIG HOSPITAL'S WEBSITE, WWW CRAIGHOSPITAL ORG,AND SOCIAL MEDIA- FACEBOOK,
TWITTER, LINKED IN, YOUTUBE, INSTAGRAM, AND BLOG -OUTREACH SCI CLINICS
IANNUALLY IN PUEBLO, GRAND JUNCTION,CO AND CASPER, WY -$100K SUPPORT PER YEAR
TO COMMUNITY ORGANIZATIONS-$10K SUPPORT PERYEAR TO BRAIN INJURY ALLIANCE
OF COLORADO +BOARD MEMBER-STAFF SERVES ON HUNDREDS OF COMMUNITY
ORGANIZATIONS-PUBLISH 15 PAPER CHAPTERS PER YEARIN PROFESSIONAL LITERATURE-
88 PRESENTATIONS PER YEAR ON SCI/TBI-CHAIRED ROCKY MOUNTAIN HUMAN SERVICES
MILITARY PROGRAM-CHAIRED COLORADO BL PROFESSIONALS NETWORK MEETING-NIDRR
MODEL SYSTEM CENTER FOR SCI AND TBI-ALUMNI HIGHER EDUCATION SCHOLARSHIP
PROGRAM-CU,SCHOOL OF MINES, DU ADAPTIVE TECHNOLOGY COLLABORATIONS-
IANCCESSIBLE HOMES COLLABORATIONS-Q & A FEATURE ON HEALTH MATTERS ON CRAIG'S
FACEBOOK PAGE-EMERGENCY PREPAREDNESS VENUES FOR ENGLEWOOD FIRE AND
POLICE-COLUMBINE HIGH SCHOOL RUN FOR REMEMBRANCE BENEFIT-COLLABORATE WITH
CHRISTOPHER & DANA REEVE PEER NETWORK PROGRAM-TRAINING FOR REGIS
NEUROPSYCHOLOGY CLASSES-TRAINING FOR AIR FORCE ACADEMY CADETS-AMI
WELLNESS-PROFESSIONAL ADVISORY COMMITTEE-CAMP DISCOVERY VOLUNTEERS-CATHY
SCOTT FOUNDATION - BOARD MEMBER-CENTER FOR WOMEN'S HEALTH RESEARCH - BOARD
MEMBER-COLORADO HOSPITAL ASSOCIATION - BOARD MEMBER-HOMEBUILDERS
FOUNDATION VOLUNTEERS-NATIONAL SPORTS CENTER FOR THE DISABLED - WINTER PARK
- BOARD MEMBER-FVA MT STATES CHAPTER




Additional Data

Software ID:
Software Version:
EIN: 84-0404233
Name: CRAIG HOSPITAL

990 Schedule H, Supplemental Information

Section C. Supplemental Information for Part V, Section B.Provide descriptions required for Part V, Section B, lines
1y, 3,4, 5d, 61, 7, 10, 11, 121, 14q, 16e, 17¢, 18e, 19¢, 19d, 20d, 21, and 22. If applicable, provide separate descriptions
|Ifor each facility in a facility reporting group, designated by "Facility A," "Facility B," etc.

Form and Line Reference

Explanation

CRAIG HOSPITAL

CRAIG HOSPITAL

PART V,SECTION B, LINE 12I SIZE OF HOUSEHOLD

CRAIG HOSPITAL

PART V,SECTION B, LINE 14G THE FINANCIAL ASSISTANCE APPLICATION IS SENTTO
PATIENT WITH
PRE-COLLECTION LETTER PATIENT BILLING STATEMENTS ALSO REFERENCE THE POLICY AND

CONTACT IN
FORMATION IS GIVEN IF THEY REQUIRE ADDITIONAL INFORMATION OR WANT TO APPLY

CRAIG HOSPITAL

PART V,SECTION B, LINE 20D THE AMOUNT IS DETERMINED BY APPLYING THE SELF-PAY
DISCOUNT OR

A GREATER DISCOUNT BASED ON THE CHARITY POLICY GUIDELINES THIS DISCOUNT IS
CALCULATED BY

AVERAGING THE NEGOTIATED COMMERCIAL INSURANCE RATES
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Schedule I . . . OMB No 1545-0047
(Form 990) Grants and Other Assistance to Organizations,
Governments and Individuals in the United States 20 1 3
Complete if the organization answered "Yes," to Form 990, Part 1V, line 21 or 22.
Department of the Treasury P Attach to Form 990
Internal Revenue Service P Information about Schedule I (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov /form990. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number

CRAIG HOSPITAL
84-0404233

m General Information on Grants and Assistance

1 Does the organization maintain records to substantiate the amount of the grants or assistance, the grantees' eligibility for the grants or assistance, and
the selection criteria used to award the grants orassistance?. . . . . . . . . - s e e e e e e e e e e e e e [ Yes ¥ No

2 Describe in Part IV the organization's procedures for monitoring the use of grant funds n the Unlted States

m Grants and Other Assistance to Governments and Organizations in the United States. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to
Form 990, Part 1V, line 21, for any recipient that received more than $5,000. Part II can be duplicated if additional space 1s needed.

(a) Name and address of (b) EIN (c) IRC Code section| (d) Amount of cash (e) Amount of non- (f) Method of (g) Description of (h) Purpose of grant
organization If applicable grant cash valuation non-cash assistance | or assistance
or government assistance (book, FMV, appraisal,
other)
(1) BRAIN INJURY 84-0893049 501(C)(3) 10,000 0 SPONSORSHIP

ALLIANCE OF COLORADO
4200 WCONEJOS PL 524
DENVER,CO 80204

(2) COLORADO 84-1100975 501(C)(3) 11,000 0 ANNUAL SUPPORT
NEUROLOGICAL
INSTITUTE

701 E HAMPDEN AVE 415
ENGLEWOOD,CO 80113

(3)ST ANTHONY HEALTH 94-0902211 501(C)(3) 6,000 0 FLIGHT FOR LIFE
FOUNDATION GO LF

11600 W2ND PL
LAKEWOOD,CO 80228

(4) NORTH AMERICAN 20-0105690 501(C)(6) 6,000 0 IANNUAL SUPPORT
BRAIN INJURY SOCIETY
PO BOX 1804

ALEXANDRIA,VA 22313

2 Enter total number of section 501(c)(3) and government organizations listed intheline 1 table. . . . . . .+ . .+ .+ .« .+« .+ .+« . . [ 4

3 Enter total number of other organizations listed inthelinel table. . . . . .+ .+ + .+ +« « o & & & 4 4w e e a e e .. 0

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 50055P Schedule I (Form 990) 2013



Schedule I (Form 990) 2013

Page 2

m Grants and Other Assistance to Individuals in the United States. Complete If the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 22.
Part III can be duplicated If additional space Is needed.

(a)Type of grant or assistance

(b)Number of
recipients

(c)Amount of
cash grant

(d)Amount of
non-cash assistance

(e)Method of valuation
(book,
FMV, appraisal, other)

(f)Description of non-cash assistance

Part IV Supplemental Information. Provide the information required in Part I, line 2, Part I1I, column (b), and any other additional information.

Return Reference

Explanation

Schedule I (Form 990) 2013
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Schedule J Compensation Information OMB No 1545-0047

(Form 990)

For certain Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest
Compensated Employees
k- Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part 1V, line 23.

2013

Department of the Treasury k- Attach to Form 990. & See separate instructions. Open to Public
Intemal Revenue Service » Information about Schedule J (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990. Inspection

Name of the organization

CRAIG HOSPITAL

84-0404233

Employer identification number

m Questions Regarding Compensation

la

Check the appropiate box(es) If the organization provided any of the following to or for a person listed in Form
990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a Complete Part III to provide any relevant information regarding these items

[T First-class or charter travel [T Housing allowance or residence for personal use
[T Travel for companions [T Payments for business use of personal residence
[T Tax idemnification and gross-up payments [ Health or social club dues or initiation fees

[T Discretionary spending account [V Personal services (e g, maid, chauffeur, chef)

If any of the boxes in line 1a are checked, did the organization follow a written policy regarding payment or
reimbursement or provision of all of the expenses described above? If "No," complete Part III to explain

Did the organization require substantiation prior to reimbursing or allowing expenses incurred by all
directors, trustees, officers, including the CEO /Executive Director, regarding the items checked in line 1a?

Indicate which, If any, of the following the filing organization used to establish the compensation of the
organization's CEO /Executive Director Check all that apply Do not check any boxes for methods

used by a related organization to establish compensation of the CEO /Executive Director, but explain in Part III
I_ Written employment contract

v Compensation survey or study

I_ Compensation committee
[ Independent compensation consultant

[T Form 990 of other organizations v Approval by the board or compensation committee

During the year, did any person listed in Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a with respect to the filing organization
or a related organization

Recelve a severance payment or change-of-control payment?
Participate In, or receive payment from, a supplemental nonqualified retirement plan?

Participate In, or recelve payment from, an equity-based compensation arrangement?
If"Yes" to any of lines 4a-c, list the persons and provide the applicable amounts for each item in Part III

Only 501(c)(3) and 501(c)(4) organizations only must complete lines 5-9.

For persons listed in Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the revenues of

The organization?
Any related organization?
If"Yes," to line 5a or 5b, describe iIn Part II1

For persons listed in Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization pay or accrue any
compensation contingent on the net earnings of

The organization?
Any related organization?
If"Yes," to line 6a or 6b, describe iIn Part II1

For persons listed in Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, did the organization provide any non-fixed
payments not described in lines 5 and 6? If "Yes," describe in Part I1I

Were any amounts reported in Form 990, Part VII, paid or accured pursuant to a contract that was
subject to the initial contract exception described in Regulations section 53 4958-4(a)(3)? If "Yes," describe
inPartIII

If"Yes" to line 8, did the organization also follow the rebuttable presumption procedure described in Regulations
section 53 4958-6(c)?

Yes | No
ib | Yes
2 Yes
4a No
4b | Yes
4c No
5a No
5b No
6a No
6b No
7 Yes
8 No
9

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 500537 Schedule J (Form 990) 2013



Schedule J (Form 990) 2013

Page 2

Im Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees. Use duplicate copies If additional space 1s needed.

For each individual whose compensation must be reported in Schedule ], report compensation from the organization on row (1) and from related organizations, described in the
instructions, on row (11) Do not list any individuals that are not listed on Form 990, Part VII
Note. The sum of columns (B)(1)-(in) for each listed individual must equal the total amount of Form 990, Part VII, Section A, line 1a, applicable column (D) and (E) amounts for that individual

(A) Name and Title (B) Breakdown of W-2 and/or 1099-MISC compensation (C) Retirement and (D) Nontaxable (E) Total of columns| (F) Compensation
(i) Base (ii) Bonus & (iii) Other other deferred benefits (B)(1)-(D) reported as deferred
compensation Incentive reportable compensation In prior Form 990

P compensation compensation
(1)MIKE FORDYCE (i) 376,905 131,737 47,066 130,200 19,342 705,250 0
PRESIDENT & CEO (ii) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(2)JULIE KEEGAN VP (i 205,291 34,807 11,300 49,708 13,017 314,123 0
FINANCE (ii) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
3)DANA POLONSKY .
\(/P)CLINICAL (0 161,429 35,107 8,134 48,058 18,211 270,939 0
SERVICES (ii) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(4)DIANE REINHARD (D 161,246 37,237 8,751 48,188 18,225 273,647 0
VP PATIENT CARE (ii) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
5)LESTER BUTT .
(DI)RECTOR_ ) 151,448 28,124 447 7,493 18,999 206,511 0
PSYCHOLOGY (i) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
(6)KENNY HOSACK
DIRECTOR - (i 140,529 24,170 536 6,898 19,046 191,179 0
PROVIDER (ii) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
RELATIONS & MKTG
(7)CYNTHIA
HARRISON-FELIX (i 127,464 14,280 455 9,705 12,668 164,572 0
DIRECTOR - (ii) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
RESEARCH
(8)MARY FELLER
EXECUTIVE (i) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
DIRECTOR - (ii) 160,722 24,966 461 7,467 1,309 194,925 0
FOUNDATION
(9)CHRIS WATKINS (i 133,850 18,069 386 6,339 18,999 177,643 0
DIRECTOR - IT (ii) 0 0 0 0 0 0 0

Schedule J (Form 990) 2013



Schedule J (Form 990) 2013 Page 3
m Supplemental Information

Provide the information, explanation, or descriptions required for PartI, lines 1a, 1b, 3,4a,4b, 4c,5a,5b,6a,6b,7,and 8, and forPart II
Also complete this part for any additional information

Return Reference Explanation

PART I,LINE 1A COUNTRY CLUBDUES AND FINANCIAL, ESTATE AND TAX PLANNING SERVICES PAID BY EMPLOYEE WERE REIMBURSED BY THE COMPANY
AND INCLUDED IN EMPLOYEE'S FORM W2 TAXABLE WAGES

PART I,LINE 4B OFFICERS PARTICIPATE IN A NON-QUALIFIED 457F RETIREMENT PLAN DURING THE TAX YEAR, THE FOLLOWING AMOUNTS WERE EARNED
AND FUNDED BY THE HOSPITAL MIKE FORDYCE $120,000,JULIE KEEGAN $40,000, DANA POLONSKY $40,000, AND DIANE RICHARD
$40,000

PART I, LINE 7 DISCRETIONARY BONUSES OF UP TO 10% OF BASE PAY ARE PAID TO DEPARTMENT DIRECTORS,UP TO 15% FOR VICE PRESIDENTS AND UP
TO 30% FOR CEO BASED UPON ATTAINING SPECIFIED PERFORMANCE GOALS

Schedule J (Form 990) 2013



Additional Data

Software ID:
Software Version:

EIN:
Name:

84-0404233
CRAIG HOSPITAL

Form 990, Schedule J, Part II - Officers, Directors, Trustees, Key Employees, and Highest Compensated Employees

(A) Name

(B) Breakdown of W-2 and/or 1099-MISC compensation

(C) Deferred

(D) Nontaxable

(E) Total of columns

(F) Compensation
reported In prior Form

(i) Base (ii) Bonus & (i) O ther compensation benefits (B)(1)-(D) 990 or Form 990-E7
Compensation Incentive compensation
compensation
MIKE FORDYCE m 376,905 131,737 47,066 130,200 19,342 705,250 0
PRESIDENT & CEO () 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
JULIE KEEGAN VP 0] 205,291 34,807 11,300 49,708 13,017 314,123 0
FINANCE () 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
DANA POLONSKY VP 0] 161,429 35,107 8,134 48,058 18,211 270,939 0
CLINICAL SERVICES () 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
DIANE REINHARD VP 0] 161,246 37,237 8,751 48,188 18,225 273,647 0
PATIENT CARE () 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
LESTER BUTT 0] 151,448 28,124 447 7,493 18,999 206,511 0
DIRECTOR - () 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PSYCHOLOGY
KENNY HOSACK () 140,529 24,170 536 6,898 19,046 191,179 0
DIRECTOR - () 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
PROVIDER
RELATIONS & MKTG
CYNTHIA HARRISON- 0] 127,464 14,280 455 9,705 12,668 164,572 0
FELIX DIRECTOR - () 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
RESEARCH
MARY FELLER 0] 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
EXECUTIVE (1) 160,722 24,966 461 7,467 1,309 194,925 0
DIRECTOR -
FOUNDATION
CHRIS WATKINS m 133,850 18,069 386 6,339 18,999 177,643 0
DIRECTOR - IT () 0 0 0 0 0 0 0
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Schedule K
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury
Internal Revenue Service

Supplemental Information on Tax Exempt Bonds

k- Complete if the organization answered "Yes" to Form 990, Part IV, line 24a. Provide descriptions,
explanations, and any additional information in Part VI.

= Attach to Form 990.

I See separate instructions.

kInformation about Schedule K (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov/form990.

OMB No 1545-0047

Name of the organization
CRAIG HOSPITAL

2013

Open to Public
Inspection

Employer identification number

84-0404233
m Bond Issues
(h) On .
(a) Issuer name (b) Issuer EIN (c) CUSIP # (d) Date 1ssued (e) Issue price (f) Description of purpose (9) Defeased blcesr;aul;?f fl(f:gl:colzlg
Yes No Yes No Yes No
A ESCLIOL??IDEC; :EﬁhEHRITY 84-0752932 19648AG82 12-03-2012 40,071,072 :I?FSUPI\ﬁEAZLOI(E)éP;ONI\ISégN & X X X
Im Proceeds
A B C D
1 Amount of bonds retired
2 Amount of bonds legally defeased
3 Total proceeds of Issue 40,071,072
4 Gross proceeds In reserve funds
5 Capitalized interest from proceeds
6 Proceeds in refunding escrows
7 Issuance costs from proceeds 558,654
8 Credit enhancement from proceeds
9 Working capital expenditures from proceeds
10 Capital expenditures from proceeds 27,071,058
11 Other spent proceeds 7,980,000
12 Other unspent proceeds 4,606,723
13 Y ear of substantial completion
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
14 Were the bonds 1ssued as part of a current refunding i1ssue? X
15 Were the bonds issued as part of an advance refunding Issue? X
16 Has the final allocation of proceeds been made? X
17 Does the organization maintain adequate books and records to support the final X
allocation of proceeds?
Private Business Use
A C D
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
1 Was the organization a partner in a partnership, or a member of an LLC, which owned X
property financed by tax-exempt bonds?
2 Are there any lease arrangements that may result in private business use of bond- X
financed property?

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.

Cat No 50193E

Schedule K (Form 990) 2013



Schedule K (Form 990) 2013 Page 2
m Private Business Use (Continued)
C
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
3a Are there any management or service contracts that may result in private business use X
of bond-financed property?
b If"Yes" to line 3a, does the organization routinely engage bond counsel or other
outside counsel to review any management or service contracts relating to the financed
property?
c Are there any research agreements that may result in private business use of bond-
financed property? X
d If"Yes" to line 3c, does the organization routinely engage bond counsel or other
outside counsel to review any research agreements relating to the financed property?
4 Enter the percentage of financed property used in a private business use by entities
other than a section 501 (c)(3) organization or a state or local government L3
5 Enter the percentage of financed property used In a private business use as a result of
unrelated trade or business activity carried on by your organization, another section
501 (c)(3) organization, or a state or local government L3
Total of lines 4 and 5
Does the bond issue meet the private security or payment test? X
8a Has there been a sale or disposition of any of the bond financed property to a
nongovernmental person other thana 501(c)(3) organization since the bonds were X
Issued?
b If "Yes" to line 8a, enter the percentage of bond-financed property sold or disposed of
c If"Yes" to line 8a, was any remedial action taken pursuant to Regulations sections
1141-12 and1 145-2?
9 Has the organization established written procedures to ensure that all nonqualified
bonds of the iIssue are remediated in accordance with the requirements under X
Regulations sections 1 141-12 and 1 145-27
LCIAEAA Arbitrage
A B C
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
1 Has the issuer filed Form 8038-T? X
2 If"No" to line 1, did the following apply?
a Rebate not due yet? X
b Exception to rebate?
c No rebate due?
If you checked "No rebate due” in line 2¢, provide In
Part VI the date the rebate computation was performed
3 Is the bond issue a variable rate issue? X
4a Has the organization or the governmental iIssuer entered X
into a qualified hedge with respect to the bond issue?
b Name of provider
Term of hedge
d Was the hedge superintegrated?
e Was the hedge terminated?

Schedule K (Form 990) 2013



Schedule K (Form 990) 2013

Page 3
LC1aEAA Arbitrage (Continued)
B
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
5a Were gross proceeds Iinvested In a guaranteed investment X
contract (GIC)?
b Name of provider
Term of GIC
d Was the regulatory safe harbor for establishing the fair market
value of the GIC satisfied?
6 Were any gross proceeds Invested beyond an available temporary X
period?
7 Has the organization established written procedures to monitor X
the requirements of section 1487
Procedures To Undertake Corrective Action
B
Yes No Yes No Yes No Yes No
Has the organization established written procedures to ensure
that violations of federal tax requirements are timely i1dentified
X
and corrected through the voluntary closing agreement program If
self-remediation 1s not available under applicable regulations?

.m Supplemental Information. Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule K (see Instructions).

Return Reference

Explanation

PART II, LINE 3

PAR AMOUNT $37,595,000 NET PREMIUM $2,476,072 TOTAL PROCEEDS OF ISSUE $40,071,072
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Schedule L Transactions with Interested Persons OMB No 1545-0047
(Form 990 or 990-EZ) & Complete if the organization answered
"Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, lines 25a, 25b, 26, 27, 28a, 28b, or 28c,
or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 38a or 40b.
Department of the Treasury k- Attach to Form 990 or Form 990-EZ. = See separate instructions. Open to Public

Intemal Revenue Service kInformation about Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its instructions is at
www.irs.gov /form990.

Inspection

Name of the organization

Employer identification number
CRAIG HOSPITAL

84-0404233
lm Excess Benefit Transactions (section 501(c)(3) and section 501(c)(4) organizations only).

Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, PartIV, line 25a or 25b, or Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 40b

1 (a) Name of disqualified person (b) Relationship between disqualified (c) Description of transaction (d) Corrected?
person and organization Yes | No

2 Enter the amount of tax incurred by organization managers or disqualified persons during the year under section
e - e ]

3 Enter the amount of tax, iIf any, on line 2, above, reimbursed by the organization. . . . . . . » 3

m Loans to and/or From Interested Persons.

Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990-EZ, Part V, line 38a, or Form 990, Part IV, line 26, or if the
organization reported an amount on Form 990, Part X, line 5,6, 0r 22

(a) Name of (b) (c) (d) Loan to (e)Oniginal | (f)Balance [(g) In (h) (i)Written

Interested Relationship |Purpose of| orfrom the principal due default? Approved agreement?

person with loan organization? amount by

organization board
or
committee?
To From Yes No | Yes No Yes No
Total > 3 |

m Grants or Assistance Benefitting Interested Persons.
Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 27.
(a) Name of interested (b) Relationship between | (c) Amount of assistance (d) Type of assistance (e) Purpose of assistance
person Interested person and the
organization

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990 or 990-EZ. Cat No 50056A Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013



Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013 Page 2

i-149¥4" Business Transactions Involving Interested Persons.
Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 28a, 28b, or 28c.

(a) Name of interested person (b) Relationship (c) Amount of (d) Description of transaction |(e) Sharing
between interested transaction of
person and the organization's
organization revenues?
Yes No
(1) DRTOM BALAZY BOARD MEMBER 806,773 |[MEDICAL DIRECTOR No
SERVICES
(2) BILLLINDSAY BOARD MEMBER 123,171 |IBENEFITS CONSULTING AND No

INSURANCE PREMIUM

Supplemental Information

Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule L (see Instructions)

Return Reference Explanation

Schedule L (Form 990 or 990-EZ) 2013
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Form 990) Noncash Contributions QM No 1545-0047
»Complete if the organizations answered "Yes" on Form 201 3
990, Part 1V, lines 29 or 30.
Department of the Treasury » Attach to Form 990. Open to Public
Intemal Revenue Service »Information about Schedule M (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov /form990. Inspection
Name of the organization Employer identification number
CRAIG HOSPITAL
84-0404233
m Types of Property
(a) (b) (o) (d)
Check Number of contributions Noncash contribution Method of determining
If or items contributed amounts reported on noncash contribution amounts
applicable Form 990, Part VIII, line
1g
1 Art—Works ofart . . . . X 19
2 Art—Historical treasures
3 Art—Fractional interests
4 Books and publications
5 Clothing and household
goods . .
6 Cars and other vehicles
7 Boats and planes
8 Intellectual property
9 Secunities—Publicly traded
10 Securities—Closely held stock .
11 Securities—Partnership, LLC,
or trust interests -
12 Securities—Miscellaneous
13 Qualified conservation
contribution—Historic
structures .
14 Qualified conservation
contribution—O ther
15 Real estate—Residential
16 Real estate—Commercial
17 Real estate—Other
18 Collectibles
19 Food inventory
20 Drugs and medical supplies
21 Taxidermy
22 Historical artifacts
23 Scientific specimens
24 Archeological artifacts
25 Otherw ( )
26 Otherw( )
27 Otherw( )
28 Otherw ( )
29 Number of Forms 8283 received by the organization during the tax year for contributions
for which the organization completed Form 8283, Part IV, Donee Acknowledgement . . . 29
Yes | No
30a During the year, did the organization receive by contribution any property reported in Part I, lines 1 through 28, that
It must hold for at least three years from the date of the initial contribution, and which i1s not required to be used
for exempt purposes for the entire holding period? . . . . . . .+ .+ . .+ .« .« . . . . . . 30a No
b If"Yes," describe the arrangement in Part II
31 Does the organization have a gift acceptance policy that requires the review of any non-standard contributions? 31 No
32a Does the organization hire or use third parties or related organizations to solicit, process, or sell noncash
contributions? . . . . . . .. 0 . . .o e e e e e e e e e e 32a No
b If"Yes," describe in PartII
33 Ifthe organization did not report an amount in column (c) for a type of property for which column (a) 1s checked,
describe in Part II

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990. Cat No 51227) Schedule M (Form 990) (2013)



Schedule M (Form 990) (2013) Page 2
Supplemental Information. Provide the information required by Part I, lines 30b,
32b, and 33, and whether the organization 1s reporting in Part I, column (b), the number of contributions, the
number of items received, or a combination of both. Also complete this part for any additional information.

Return Reference Explanation

PART I, COLUMN (B) 19 PIECES OF ART WERE DONATED TO THE HOSPITAL BY THE INDIVIDUAL ARTISTS TO BE
USED BY THE HOSPITAL AND WERE NOT VALUED BY THE ARTISTS

Schedule M (Form 990) (2013)
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SCHEDULE O
(Form 990 or 990-EZ)

Department of the Treasury
Intemal Revenue Service

k- Information about Schedule O (Form 990 or 990-EZ) and its instructions is at

OMB No 1545-0047

Open to Public
Inspection

Supplemental Information to Form 990 or 990-EZ

Complete to provide information for responses to specific questions on
Form 990 or to provide any additional information.
e Attach to Form 990 or 990-EZ.

www.irs.gov/form990.

Name of the organization
CRAIG HOSPITAL

Employer identification number

84-0404233

990 Schedule O, Supplemental Information

Return Reference

Explanation

FORM 990, PART |, LINE 1

FORM 990, PART I, LINE 1

CRAIG HOSPITAL IS A 93-BED LONG-TERM ACUTE CARE AND REHABILITATION HOSPITAL THAT PROVIDES
CARE EXCLUSIVELY FOR PATIENTS WITH SPINAL CORD AND TRAUMATIC BRAIN INJURY CRAIG HOSPITAL
PROVIDES A COMPREHENSIVE SY STEM OF INPATIENT AND OUTPATIENT MEDICAL CARE, REHABILITATION,
NEUROSURGICAL REHABILITATIVE CARE AND LONG-TERM FOLLOW-UP SERVICES

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION
A, LINE4

A REVISION WAS MADE TO ALLOW NON-BOARD MEMBERS TO SERVE ON THE FINANCE AUDIT COMMITTEE
AND

THE MEDICAL CARE AND ADMINISTRATIVE COMMITTEE SUBJECT TO THE APPROVAL OF THE COMMITTEE
CH

AIRPERSON AND THE HOSPITAL BOARD EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION
B, LINE 11

PRIOR TO FILING, THE FORM 990 AND RELATED SCHEDULES WERE PRESENTED, REVIEAVED AND APPROVED
BY THE FINANCE/AUDIT COMMITTEE OF THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS COPIES WERE ALSO DISTRIBUTED TO
THE FULL BOARD ALONG WITH A REPORT FROM THE FINANCEAUDIT COMMITTEE

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION
B, LINE12C

ALL BOARD MEMBERS, VICE PRESIDENTS AND DIRECTOR-LEVEL POSITIONS COMPLETE A DUALITY OF INTE
REST FORM ANNUALLY AND ANY DISCLOSURES ARE SHARED WITH THE BOARD OF DIRECTORS

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION
B, LINE 15

THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE COMMISSIONS AN INDEPENDENT COMPENSATION CONSULTING FIRM EVERY 2-
3

YEARS TO CONDUCT A STUDY OF COMPENSATION OF THE KEY LEADERSHIP POSITIONS WITHIN THE
HOSPIT

AL UTILIZING DATA FROM BOTH LOCAL AND NATIONAL HOSPITALS THIS DATA WAS UTILIZED BY THE EX
ECUTIVE COMMITTEE WHEN IT APPROVES THE COMPENSATION OF THE PRESIDENT/CEO AND OTHER TOP
MAN

AGEMENT POSITIONS WITHIN THE HOSPITAL ALL OF THE DETAILS OF THE DELIBERATION AND DECISION
MAKING PROCESS ARE DOCUMENTED IN THE EXECUTIVE COMMITTEE MINUTES

FORM 990, PART VI, SECTION
C, LINE19

CRAIG HOSPITAL'S GOVERNING DOCUMENTS, CONFLICT OF INTEREST POLICY AND FINANCIAL
STATEMENTS ARE AVAILABLE TO THE PUBLIC UPON REQUEST

FORM 990, PART IX, LINE11G

CONTRACTED MEDICAL SERVICES PROGRAM SERVICE EXPENSES 10,618,315 MANAGEMENT AND

GENERAL E

XPENSES 0 FUNDRAISING EXPENSES 0 TOTAL EXPENSES 10,618,315 CONSULTING SERVICES PROGRAM

SERVICE EXPENSES 115,845 MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL EXPENSES 105,608 FUNDRAISING EXPENSES 0
TOTAL EXPENSES 221,453 MEDICAL DIRECTOR SERVICES PROGRAM SERVICE EXPENSES 530,400 MAN

AGEMENT AND GENERAL EXPENSES 0 FUNDRAISING EXPENSES 0 TOTAL EXPENSES 530,400 LAUNDRY

SE

RVICES PROGRAM SERVICE EXPENSES 315,546 MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL EXPENSES 0 FUNDRAISING

E

XPENSES 0 TOTAL EXPENSES 315,546 PURCHASED SERVICES PROGRAM SERVICE EXPENSES 128,256 M

ANAGEMENT AND GENERAL EXPENSES 92,997 FUNDRAISING EXPENSES 0 TOTAL EXPENSES 221,253

CON

TRACT LABOR PROGRAM SERVICE EXPENSES 93,622 MANAGEMENT AND GENERAL EXPENSES 0

FUNDRAISI

NG EXPENSES 0 TOTAL EXPENSES 93,622 OTHER SERVICES PROGRAM SERVICE EXPENSES 26,977 MAN

AGEMENT AND GENERAL EXPENSES 4,080 FUNDRAISING EXPENSES 0 TOTAL EXPENSES 31,057
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DLN: 93493229041825

SCHEDULE R
(Form 990)

Department of the Treasury
Intemal Revenue Service

= Attach to Form 990.

Related Organizations and Unrelated Partnerships

= Complete if the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V, line 33, 34, 35b, 36, or 37.
Ik See separate instructions.
k- Information about Schedule R (Form 990) and its instructions is at www.irs.gov /form990.

OMB No 1545-0047

Name of the organization
CRAIG HOSPITAL

84-0404233

Open to Public
Inspection

Employer identification number

IEEREHEl 1dentification of Disregarded Entities Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 33.

(a)
Name, address, and EIN (if applicable) of disregarded entity

(b)

Primary activity

(c)
Legal domicile (state
or foreign country)

(d)

Total iIncome

(e)

End-of-year assets

0]
Direct controlling
entity

(1) REHABILITATION DOCUMENTATION SERVICES
3425 S CLARKSON STREET

ENGLEWOOD, CO 80113

03-0434653

SOFTWARE DEVELOPMENT

Cco

63,074

147,892

CRAIG HOSPITAL

IEXYTEil 1dentification of Related Tax-Exempt Organizations Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV,

or more related tax-exempt organizations during the tax year.

line 34 because it had one

(a)
Name, address, and EIN of related organization

(b)

Primary activity

(c)
Legal domicile (state
or foreign country)

(d)

Exempt Code section

(e)
Public chanty status
(if section 501(c)(3))

Direct controlling
entity

(9)
Section 512(b)
(13) controlled

(1) CRAIG HOSPITAL FOUNDATION
3425 S CLARKSON ST

ENGLEWOOD, CO 80113
23-7352287

FUNDRAISING

entity?
Yes No
Cco 501(C)(3) 11A/TYPE I CRAIG HOSPITAL Yes

For Paperwork Reduction Act Notice, see the Instructions for Form 990.

Cat No 50135Y

Schedule R (Form 990) 2013



Schedule R (Form 990) 2013

Page 2

EETREiid Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Partnership Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34
because It had one or more related organizations treated as a partnership during the tax year.

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) 0] (9) (h) (i) (6)) (k)
Name, address, and EIN of Primary activity| Legal Direct Predominant Share of Share of |Disproprtionate| Code V-UBI | General or| Percentage
related organization domicile| controlling income(related, |total income |end-of-year| allocations? |amount in box| managing | ownership
(state or entity unrelated, assets 20 of partner?
foreign excluded from Schedule K-1
country) tax under (Form 1065)
sections 512-
514)
Yes No Yes | No

-14¥A"A Identification of Related Organizations Taxable as a Corporation or Trust Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part 1V,
line 34 because it had one or more related organizations treated as a corporation or trust during the tax year.

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) g (h) 0]
Name, address, and EIN of Primary activity Legal Direct controlling | Type of entity Share of total |Share of end-of- Percentage Section 512
related organization domicile entity (C corp, S corp, income year ownership (b)(13)
(state or foreign or trust) assets controlled
country) entity?
Yes No
INACTIVE Cco CRAIG HOSPITAL |C 100 000 % Yes

(1) ADAPTIVE EQUIPMENT
Cco

3425 S CLARKSON ST
ENGLEWOOD, CO 801132811
84-1280869

Schedule R (Form 990) 2013



Schedule R (Form 990) 2013 Page 3

Transactions With Related Organizations Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 34, 35b, or 36.

Note. Complete line 1 if any entity 1s listed in Parts II, III, or IV of this schedule Yes | No
1 During the tax year, did the orgranization engage I1n any of the following transactions with one or more related organizations listed in Parts II-IV?

a Receipt of (i) interest (ii) annuities (iii) royalties or (iv) rent from a controlled entity 1a No
b Gift, grant, or capital contribution to related organization(s) 1b No
c Gift, grant, or capital contribution from related organization(s) 1c | Yes
d Loans orloan guarantees to or for related organization(s) id No
e Loans orloan guarantees by related organization(s) 1le No
f Dividends from related organization(s) 1f No
g Sale of assets to related organization(s) 1g No
h Purchase of assets from related organization(s) ih No
i Exchange of assets with related organization(s) 1i No
j Lease offacilities, equipment, or other assets to related organization(s) 1j No
k Lease of facilities, equipment, or other assets from related organization(s) 1k No
I Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations for related organization(s) 1l | Yes
m Performance of services or membership or fundraising solicitations by related organization(s) im| Yes
n Sharing of facilities, equipment, mailing lists, or other assets with related organization(s) in| Yes
o Sharing of paid employees with related organization(s) 1lo | Yes
p Remmbursement paid to related organization(s) for expenses 1p No
q Reimbursement paid by related organization(s) for expenses 1q | Yes
r Othertransfer of cash or property to related organization(s) 1r No
s Othertransfer of cash or property from related organization(s) 1s No

2 Ifthe answerto any of the above I1s "Yes," see the instructions for information on who must complete this line, including covered relationships and transaction thresholds

(a) (b) (c) (d)
Name of related organization Transaction Amount involved Method of determining amount involved
type (a-s)
(1) CRAIG HOSPITAL FOUNDATION C 10,852,058|ACTUAL COSTS
(2) CRAIG HOSPITAL FOUNDATION Q 1,417,615|ACTUAL COSTS

Schedule R (Form 990) 2013



Schedule R (Form 990) 2013

Page 4

IEEYTEZ28 Unrelated Organizations Taxable as a Partnership Complete If the organization answered "Yes" on Form 990, Part IV, line 37.
Provide the following information for each entity taxed as a partnership through which the organization conducted more than five percent of its activities (measured by total assets or gross

revenue) that was not a related organization See instructions regarding exclusion for certain investment partnerships

(a) (b) (c) (d) (e) 0] (9) (h) (i) 6)] (k)

Name, address, and EIN of entity Pnmary activity Legal Predominant | Are all partners Share of Share of Disproprtionate Code V?UBI | General or Percentage

domicile Income section total end-of-year allocations? amount In managing ownership

(state or (related, 501(c)(3) Income assets box 20 partner?

foreign unrelated, organizations? of Schedule

country) |excluded from K-1

tax under (Form 1065)
sections 512-
514)
Yes| No Yes No Yes No

Schedule R (Form 990) 2013
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.m Supplemental Information

Provide additional information for responses to questions on Schedule R (see Instructions)

Return Reference Explanation

Schedule R (Form 990) 2013
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FORM 990, PART IV, LINE 20B

The Form 990 has been completed using financial information from a draft of the audited financial
statements for Craig Hospital The draft of the audited financial statements has been attached to the
Form 990 The audited financial statements for Craig Hospital for the fiscal year ended September 30,
2014 have not been issued, pending approval at the next Board meeting scheduled for August 20,
2015 Craig Hospital will forward the audited financial statements following the Board meeting
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT

“
N
S
/\'s

Board of Directors \
Craig Hospital and Affiliates

Englewood, Colorado §

REPORT ON THE FINANCIAL STATEMENTS Q C

We have audited the accompanying consolidated financial statements of C&'Hospltal and Affiliates
(the "Hospital"), which are comprised of the consolidated balance sheet$asepf September 30, 2014 and
2013, and the related consolidated statements of operations, change t assets, and cash flows for
the years then ended, and the related notes to the consolidated fina tatements

MANAGEMENT'S RESPONSIBILITY FOR THE CONS@ATED FINANCIAL

STATEMENTS §

Management 1s responsible for the preparation and ﬁgp sentation of these consolidated financial
statements 1n accordance with accounting prmmpbmenerally accepted 1n the United States of
America, this includes the design, implementation, a aintenance of internal control relevant to the
preparation and fair presentation of consohdate%manmal statements that are free from material
misstatement, whether due to fraud or error (D

AUDITORS' RESPONSIBILITY é}

Our responsibility 1s to express an.op@(q on these consolidated financial statements based on our
audits. We conducted our audits »cordance with auditing standards generally accepted 1n the
United States of America and t ndards applicable to financial audits contained in Government
Auditing Standards, 1ssued b omptroller General of the United States Those standards require
that we plan and perform t%dlt to obtain reasonable assurance about whether the consolidated
material misstatement

financial statements are @

An audit involves pewl g procedures to obtain audit evidence about the amounts and disclosures in
the consolidated fi | statements. The procedures selected depend on the auditors' judgment,
including the asse&t of the risks of material misstatement of the consolidated financial statements,
whether due to fra&d or error In making those risk assessments, the auditors consider internal control
relevant to thd/eptity's preparation and fair presentation of the consolidated financial statements in
order to desd& audit procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances, but not for the purpose of
expressi opinion on the effectiveness of the entity's internal control Accordingly, we express no
such o An audit also includes evaluating the appropriateness of accounting policies used and the
reas eness of significant accounting estimates made by management, as well as evaluating the
ov resentation of the consolidated financial statements

S



Board of Directors
Craig Hospital and Affiliates

Page Two %
D

We believe that the audit evidence we have obtained 1s sufficient and appropriate to provide a lﬁs/%r

our audit opinion
OPINION (\ "

In our opinion, the consolidated financial statements referred to above present falrll)% all material
respects, the financial position of Craig Hospital and Affiliates as of September 14 and 2013,
and the changes in their net assets and their cash flows for the years then ende accordance with
accounting principles generally accepted in the United States of America QO

OTHER MATTERS Y"

Our audits were conducted for the purpose of forming an opinionnTthe consolidated financial
statements as a whole The schedule of expenditures of federal ,&as required by the Office of
Management and Budget Circular A-133, Audits of States, L Governments, and Non-Profit
Organizations, 1s presented for purposes of additional analy {[S\and 1s not a required part of the
consolidated financial statements Such information 1s ons1b111ty of management and was
derived from and relates directly to the underlying accoun and other records used to prepare the
consolidated financial statements The 1nformat10n n subjected to the auditing procedures
applied 1n the audits of the consolidated financial ements and certain additional procedures,
including comparing and reconciling such 1nformat1 1 ectly to the underlying accounting and other
records used to prepare the consolidated fina statements or to the consolidated financial
statements themselves, and other addltlonal edures in accordance with auditing standards
generally accepted in the United States of In our opinion, the schedule of expenditures of
federal awards 1s fairly stated, in all m l respects in relation to the consolidated financial
statements as a whole

OTHER REPORTING REQUIR OVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARDS

In accordance with Gover nmem@ng Standards, we have also 1ssued our report dated August 31,

2015, on our consideration oft ospital's internal control over financial reporting and on our tests of
its compliance with certat visions of laws, regulations, contracts, grant agreements, and other
matters The purpose o lKreport 1s to describe the scope of our testing of internal control over
financial reporting a d&phance and the results of that testing, and not to provide an opinion on
internal control over cial reporting or on compliance That report 1s an integral part of an audit
performed 1n accor e with Government Auditing Standards 1n considering the Hospital's internal
control over fina eporting and compliance

QO
A EKS&H LLLP
Aug %2015
Dleln&("olorado
KL




Current assets

Cash and cash equivalents
Short-term 1nv estments

CRAIG HOSPITAL AND AFFILIATES

Consolidated Balance Sheets

September 30. AQ

X

2014

20‘13\')

Assets

Assets limited as to use required for current liabilities

Recervables

Patients. net of allowance for uncollectible accounts
of $171.428 (2014) and $218.053 (2013)

Grants and other

Iny entories

Prepaid expenses and other assets .

Total current assets

Assets limited as to use
Board-designated and donor-restricted iny estments

SERP fund

Total assets limited as to use

9]

4914350 $ \’5.160.6 16

31.293.796

1.222.65%

26.455.313
2.129.369

19.437.620
622477
312.109

.0635.355

1
55.383.061

&

)
53.271.456

S

Land. buildings. and equipment. net

Contributions recer able. net

Deferred debt 1ssuance costs. net é

73.142.230

1.270.580 921.898
34.342.036 74.064.148
101.104.522 63.215.339
11.392 444 14.104.461
319.350 337.789

Total assets % $ 223966238 $ 207.304.798
LiabiliAie)s d Net Assets
Current liabilities &
Accounts pay able and accrued expenses (D $ 6.896.258 §$ 6.947.464
Payvroll and payroll-related expensese 4.382.967 4.040.283
Compensated absences 1.854.031 1.788.426
Current portion of long-term de.bt& 640.000 625.000
Total current liabilities \ 13.773.256 13.401.173
Long-term debt. net of current \n 38.654.756 39.377.292
SERP obligation 1.510.580 1.161.898
Post-retirement benefit obWgation 74.624 176.009
Other long-term habili 3.898.563 -
Total habilitieg 37.911.779 54.116.372
Commitments and ‘a& hgencies
Net assets
Unrestricte @ 149.137.099 133.345.620
TemposgM¥estricted 14.425.193 17.358.639
Perma X restricted 2.492.167 2.484.167
net assets 166.054.439 153.188.426

To Nllltles and net assets

&Q)

$ 223966238 $ 207.304.798

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CRAIG HOSPITAL AND AFFILIATES

Consolidated Statements of Operations

Unrestricted revenues and other support

For the Years End
September 30,

“
N
S

2014

ggog

Net patient service revenues $ 80,530,024 & 75,609,728
Other operating revenues 2,960,20 % 2,753,998
Net assets released from restrictions 6
Research 2,70 % 2,884,031
Other programs and costs 2=OQ§E?_9 1,346,027
Total unrestricted revenues and other support 88,%81,274 82.593.784
Operating expenses "
Wages, salaries, and benefits A?9,771,171 46,565,373
Purchased services ‘b(b 2,286,068 12,015,240
Supplies and other 10,044,605 9,310,555
Research Q 2,708,552 2,884,031
Depreciation and amortization Q 5,149,980 4,795,371
Interest @ 21,167 20,394
Insurance, legal, and other professional services 1,027,189 1,184,276
Provision for bad debts K (86,385) 153,265
Other programs and costs Q 2,597.879 1,879,780
Total operating expenses % 83,520,226 78.808.285
Operating income (D 4,761,048 3,785,499
Other income 6
Investment and other (D 1,869,110 1,479,226
Contributions o Q 2032318 1.830917
Total other income &\ 3.901.428 3.310.143
[
Excess of revenues over exp% 8.662.476 7.095.642
Unrealized losses on mnves s (527,553) (457,828)
Net assets released for -t&rm asset acquisitions 7.656.556 10,631,585
7.129.003 10,173.757
Change 1n unrestri net assets $ 15791479 $ 17269399

q)‘b‘
S
\‘b‘
S

& See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CRAIG HOSPITAL AND AFFILIATES

Consolidated Statements of Changes in Net Assets

&
For the Years Endeﬂ\/Q

September 30,

Unrestricted net assets

N

Excess of revenues over expenses $ 8,662,476 7,095,642
Unrealized losses on investments (527,55 (457,828)
Net assets released for long-term asset acquisitions 7.656.5 10,631,585
Change 1n unrestricted net assets 15,791, 17.269.399
Temporarily restricted net assets
Research grants 208,552 2,884,031
Contributions @,63 9,574 18,817,526
Investment income A) 166,033 212,031
Net assets released from restrictions ‘b(b
Research (2,708,552) (2,884,031)
Other programs and costs Q (9.739.053) (11.977.612)
Change 1n temporarily restricted net assets Q (2,933.446) 7.051,945
Permanently restricted net assets
Contributions 8.000 1.421.364
Change 1n permanently restricted net assets Q 8.000 1,421,364
Change 1n net assets (D% 12,866,033 25,742,708
Net assets, beginning of year A) 153,188,426 127.445.718
Net assets, end of year & $ 166054459 $ 153.188.426

L)
Q>
N

& See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CRAIG HOSPITAL AND AFFILIATES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows Q}
For the Years Endeé\)Q
September 30,

2014 AL f
Cash flows from operating activities

Change 1n net assets $ 12,866,033 $\5,742,708
Adjustments to reconcile change 1n net assets to net cash \‘
provided by operating activities N< D
Net unrealized losses on investments 527.5 262,068
Depreciation and amortization 5,14 @ 4,795,371
Provision for bad debts 11,633
Loss from disposal of equipment and other w,lm 50,071
Provision for uncollectible pledges 1,054) 141,632
Discount on long-term pledges ® (37,731) 195,589
Receipts for permanently restricted endowment ?} (8,000) (1,421,364)
Changes 1n operating assets and liabilities 2
Patient recervables ¥ 2,566,196 (1,327,775)
Contributions recetvable QQ 2,840,802 (9,714,104)
Grants receivable and other 44,707 (127,132)
Inventories @ (64,883) (54,076)
Prepaid expenses and other assets %{ 109,809 224,094
Accounts payable, accrued expenses, and other@ term
liabilities 3,847,357 1,579,433
Payroll and payroll-related expenses, compe%ted absences,
post-retirement benefit obligation, and S obligation 655.586 (917.884)
16,018,158 (6,302.444)
Net cash provided by operating actu@e 28.884.191 19.440.264

Purchases of marketable securities (49,256,533) (90,190,139)

Cash flows from investing activities Q(D
L]

Sales of marketable securities 64,319,503 57,976,501
Purchases of land, buildingg? quipment (43.576,427) (19.689.151)
Net cash used in inves ctivities (28.513.457) (51,902.789)
Cash flows from financi Q:gglvmes
Principal payments O’Q}lg-term debt (625,000) (8,855,000)
Proceeds from 1ssu§'e of long-term debt - 40,071,072
Payment for debt nce costs - (553,154)
Contributions @manently restricted endowment 8.000 1,421,364
Net cash (us€d 1n) provided by financing activities (617.000) 32.084.282
Net decreaﬂ@ash and cash equivalents (246,260) (378,243)
[ ]
Cash an >yh equivalents at beginning of year 5,160,616 5,538,859
Cash cash equivalents at end of year $ 4914350 § 5,160,616

See notes to consolidated financial statements

({@Qued on the following page)
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(Continued from the previous page)

Supplemental disclosure of cash flow information. <\

CRAIG HOSPITAL AND AFFILIATES

Consolidated Statements of Cash Flows

Cash paid for interest was $1,594,025 and $792,790 during the years endengptember 30,

2014 and 2013, respectively. &

During 2014 and 2013, the Hospital adjusted its SERP fund to fair mark%lue by recording
$108,681 and $106,070, respectively, of investment earnings on the as@a ell as the related
liability The fair value 1s determined using market quotes as of tes reported Ending
SERP fund balances also reflect total distributions made during the yégpr

During 2014, the Hospital paid interest of $1,594,025 and acoﬁ%?nterest of $528,217 on the
2012 Bonds, which 1s capitalized in land, buildings, and t, net of interest income on
the bond proceeds held 1n assets limited as to use of $29,51

During 2013, the Hospital paid interest of $792,79 %crued interest of $532,042 on the

2012 Bonds, which 1s capitalized in land, buildings) equipment, net of interest income on
the bond proceeds held 1n assets limited as to us¢ ,973
Non-cash activity Q

During 2014 and 2013, the amortization e 2012 Bonds premium of $82,536 and $68,780,
respectively, was capitalized n land, bUI% s, and equipment

See notes to consolidated financial statements
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CRAIG HOSPITAL AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %
Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (\/Q
Organization
Z (\ 4|

Craig Hospital, a not-for-profit corporation located in Denver, Colorado, provides a vm range of
treatment and rehabilitative services for spinal, brain, and other nervous-system-re)&ge‘d injuries to
patients from Colorado and other states

Craig Hospital Foundation (the "Foundation"), a not-for-profit corporatlon%ated in Denver,
Colorado, was formed to promote and improve public health and welfare and eral well-being of
mankind through the development and provision of health care services Foundation supports
Craig Hospital's charitable and educational purposes and contributes its fundgor these programs

Rehabilitation Documentation Services, LLC ("RDS") 1s a for-profltlégaly owned limited liability

company SD

Basis of Presentation Q

The consolidated financial statements, which include the a ts of Craig Hospital, the Foundation,
and RDS (collectively, the "Hospital") are prepared on crual basis of accounting All significant
intercompany accounts and transactions have been eliynated in consolidation.

Use of Estimates Q

The preparation of financial statements in conf y with accounting principles generally accepted in

the United States of America ("GAAP") requfes management to make estimates and assumptions that
affect the reported amounts of assets and iy1es and disclosures of contingent assets and liabilities
at the date of the consolidated financial ents and the reported amounts of revenues and expenses
during the reporting period Actual ;e@could differ from those estimates

Cash and Cash Equivalents &
[ J

Cash and cash equivalents 1n&amounts on deposit in demand accounts and investments with an
original maturity of three s or less whose use 1s not limited, excluding balances held in the
investment portfolio. &Spltal continually monitors its positions with, and the credit quality of,
the financial institutiggs whh which 1t invests. Throughout the year, the Hospital held balances of cash
and cash equlvalents%cess of the federally insured limit

Investments and U_@nent Return

Investments S@dulty securities and all investments 1n debt securities are reported at their fair values,

with unrem gains and losses included 1n the consolidated statements of operations and changes in
net asset estment income 1s reported as other income. Unrealized gains and losses on investments
other trading securities are excluded from the excess of revenues over expenses Investment

1nco6 d gains restricted by donors are reported as increases in temporarily restricted net assets

&Q)



CRAIG HOSPITAL AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %

Note 1 - Oreganization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) (\/Q

Assets Limited as to Use (\ o

Assets limited as to use consist of donor-restricted investments and designated assets set dtde by the
Board of Directors for capital improvements, endowment funds, and a supplen‘)é@aal executive
retirement plan. The Board of Directors retains control over Board-designated ass nd may, at its
discretion, subsequently use these assets for other purposes In 2014, the b e included the
unexpended bond proceeds held by the trustee of $3,284,044. Q

Inventories, consisting of medical and other operating supplies, are ftagd at the lower of cost or

Inventories

market on a first-1n, first-out basis

Land, Buildings, and Equipment ‘b

Land, buildings, and equipment are recorded at cost Interegt @?red, net of interest earned on related

funds held by a trustee under bond agreements, in conn n with borrowings to finance major

construction, 1s capitalized until the related assets are (ﬁ; service and subsequently amortized over
{

the lives of the related assets Depreciation and a 1zation are recorded using the straight-line
method over the shorter of the estimated useful llfe@l ase term of the related assets, which ranges
from 3 to 40 years %

The Hospital's capitalization policy requires 1nwdual assets to be capitalized if the original cost or
fair value at date of donation exceeds $1,000g%d the asset life 1s greater than one year

Contributions Recervable (b

realizable value Unconditional ses to give that are expected to be collected in future years, 1f
any, are recorded at the prese { e of estimated future cash flows The discounts on these pledges
are computed using a rlsk 1nterest rate, net of an allowance for uncollectible accounts, 1f
necessary The allow. ancig od 1s used to determine uncollectible contributions recervable The

Unconditional promises to give thas @i@ expected to be collected within one year are recorded at net

allowance 1s based on ent's estimate and analysis of specific pledges

Long-Lived Assets

Long-lived asset Qe held and used are reviewed for impairment whenever events or changes in
circumstances 4dicate that the related carrying amount may not be recoverable When required,
impairment g on assets to be held and used are recognized based on the fair value of the asset.
Long-livédaassets to be disposed of are reported at the lower of carrying amount or fair value less cost
to sell pairment losses were recorded as of September 30, 2014 and 2013

X
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CRAIG HOSPITAL AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %
Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) (\/Q
Deferred Debt Issuance Costs (\ o

Deferred debt 1ssuance costs include bond fees and are amortized using the effective inteNst method
over the original term of the related debt of 30 years %\‘

The accompanying consolidated statements of operations include excess of 1@5 over expenses
Changes 1n unrestricted net assets, which are excluded from excess enues over expenses
consistent with industry practice, include unrealized gains and losses on invegtments other than trading
securities, permanent transfers of assets to and from affiliates for otheg than goods and services, and
contributions of long-lived assets (including assets acquired usmgé‘%‘mbutlons, which, by donor

Excess of Revenues over Expenses

restriction, were to be used for the purpose of acquiring such Income from discontinued
operations 1s also excluded from excess of revenues over expensb

Net Patient Service Revenues and Patient Accounts Receivgbl

payors, and others for services rendered, including estdated adjustments under agreements with third-
party payors Adjustments are recorded on an esti basis in the period the related services are
rendered and adjusted in future periods as final setflements are determined

Net patient service revenues are reported at estimated :et 1zable amounts from patients, third-party

The Hospital assesses a patient's ability to p‘:abat the time services are rendered, and accounts
receivable are reduced by an allowance fg%oubtful accounts In evaluating the collectibility of
accounts receivable, management analyze#\ts past history and identifies trends for each of its major
payor sources of revenue to estimate th gbroprlate allowance for doubtful accounts and provision for
uncollectible accounts Manageme é@ularly reviews data about these major payor sources of
revenue 1n evaluating the suffici of the allowance for doubtful accounts For receivables
associated with self-pay patients Hospital records a provision for uncollectible accounts in the
period of service on the basi st experience and specific identification The difference between
the standard rates, or the disc ed rates 1f negotiated or provided by policy, and the amounts actually
collected after all reas collection efforts have been exhausted 1s charged off against the
allowance for doubtful a nts

Charity Care and C on‘\biual Allowances

The Hospital pro@s care to patients who meet certain criteria under 1ts charity care policy without
charge or at a@mts less than established rates Because the Hospital does not pursue collection of
amounts Qet@uned to qualify as charity care, they are not reported as revenue Charity care provided
during thﬁﬁars ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, based on cost of services provided, totaled

$918.,2 d $1,342,175, respectively In addition, the Hospital also provides medical services to
patie vered under state Medicaid programs at less than established rates, which are recorded as
con al adjustments These contractual adjustments totaled $10,857,007 and $10,749,704 for the

e@ ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively The Hospital has not changed its charity care
ninsured discount policies during fiscal years 2014 or 2013
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CRAIG HOSPITAL AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 1 - Oreganization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) (\/Q
q

Contributions (\

Contributions and bequests are available for unrestricted use unless specifically restrided by the
donors Contributions are reported as either temporarily or permanently restricted supQort if they are
received with donor stipulations that limit the use of the donated assets When or restriction

expires, that 1s, when a stipulated time restriction ends or purpose restricti accomplished,
temporarily restricted net assets are reclassified as unrestricted net asset reported 1n the
accompanying consolidated statements of operations as net assets released fr Strictions In-kind

donations are recorded at fair value at the date of gift In the absence Tonor specification that
income and gains on donated funds are restricted, such income and gains ane reported as unrestricted

mcome A i

Temporarily and Permanently Restricted Net Assets ‘b

Temporarily restricted net assets are those whose use has be
period or purpose Temporarily restricted net assets as of
for support of various patient programs and capital 1m
are to be maintained n perpetuity, the income fgom
Permanently restricted net assets consist of endowme&‘u
support various patient programs

ited by donors to a specific time
ber 30, 2014 and 2013 are available
ents Permanently restricted net assets
hich 1s available for program support
nds, the income from which 1s available to

Endowment Fund (D%

During 2004, the Foundation's Board of D@)rs set aside $3,000,000 1n an endowment fund for the
purpose of protecting the future excellen raig Hospital During 2008, an additional $1,000,000
was set aside from the proceeds from&'sale of a subsidiary of Craig Hospital During 2012, the
Board of Directors approved the rePeni f $4,925,000 of Board-designated endowment funds for the
purpose of paying for future expa at the Hospital The remaining Board-designated endowment
funds were released 1n 2013 0\§P

Income Tax Status @

The Hospital and the F%atlon qualify as tax-exempt organizations under Section 501(c)(3) of the
Internal Revenue Co S 1s a limited lLiability company and 1s not a tax-paying entity for federal
income tax purpose efore, no income tax expense has been recorded 1n the consolidated financial
statements. MemP& re taxed individually on their shares of RDS's earnings

The Hospital @lles a more-likely-than-not measurement methodology to reflect the consolidated
financial §ta@ent impact of uncertain tax positions taken or expected to be taken 1n a tax return After
evaluati %‘e tax positions taken, none are considered to be uncertain, therefore, no amounts have
been reé§4zed as of September 30, 2014 and 2013

If 1 ed, interest and penalties associated with tax positions are recorded in the period assessed in
t@ rograms and costs. No interest or penalties have been assessed as of September 30, 2014 and
( Q;l
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CRAIG HOSPITAL AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %
Note 1 - Organization and Summary of Significant Accounting Policies (continued) (\/Q
Income Tax Status (continued) (\ q

Tax years that remain subject to examination include 2011 through the current period fo\;he federal
return and 2010 through the current period for the Colorado return

Subsequent Events Q

The Hospital has evaluated all subsequent events through the auditors' repor %whlch 1s the date
the consolidated financial statements were available for issuance No quent events require
disclosure based upon this review

A)"
Note 2 - Concentration of Credit Risk 2 (b

The Hospital grants credit without collateral to its patients, mos hom are insured under third-party
payor agreements The mix of receivables from patients an t@-party payors was as follows

September 30,

K 2014 2013

Other third-party payors Q 55 % 59 %
Workers' compensation % 20 17
Medicare (D 16 17
Medicaid i: 9 7
Total & 100 % 100 %

&

Note 3 - Net Patient Service Rev@
[ J

The Hospital has agreements mhlrd-party payors for payments to the Hospital at amounts different
from 1ts established rates. mmary of the payment arrangements with major third-party payors
follows

Medicare and Medlca‘b

Services rendere Qedlcare and Medicaid program beneficiaries are paid based on diagnosis-related
groups and are mct to audit and retroactive adjustment Laws and regulations governing these
programs ar @remely complex and subject to interpretation As a result, there 1s at least a
reasonable élblllty that recorded estimates will change in the near term Management believes that
the Hosp in substantial compliance with current laws and regulations related to the Medicare and

Medlgi‘%vrograms

&Q)
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CRAIG HOSPITAL AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %

Note 3 - Net Patient Service Revenues (continued) (\/Q

Other Third-Party Payors (\ o

The Hospital has negotiated payment agreements with certain commercial insurance ca%sgrs, health
maintenance organizations, and preferred provider organizations The basis for ment to the
Hospital under these agreements includes per-diem rates and discounts from establ% harges

Note 4 - Investments 0 6

The fair values of investments held are as follows Z

A " September 30,
Qv 92014 2013

Obligations of the U S government and government agench $ 2,398,223 $§ 41,132,446

Fixed income securities Q 13,016,755 12,662,241
Equity securities - 10,854,138
Mutual funds 51,727,203 23,644,766
Bond funds K - 1,942,810
Cash equivalents Q 19,815,850 12,259,045
Accrued interest % 100.478 153.586
Total (D $ 87058509 $ 102.649.032
Short-term 1nvestments A) $ 31,293,796 $ 26,455,315
Assets limited as to use required for (@tnt liabilities 1,222,677 2,129,569
Assets limited as to use . 54.542.036 74.064.148

Total & $  87.058.509 $ 102.649.032
[ ]

The following schedule sum% s the investment return included in the accompanying consolidated
statements of operations. &

L For the Years Ended
‘b September 30,
Q 2014 2013

Unrealized los& $ (527,553) $ (262,008)
Dividend interest 641,563 1,124,713
Reali 1ns on investments 2,025,155 608,163
Inves%lt management fees (158.408) (187.308)

éb $ 1,980,757 $§ 1,283,500

&Q)
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CRAIG HOSPITAL AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note S - Land, Buildings, and Equipment (\/Q
q

Land, buildings, and equipment consist of the following

Seotembe\Q,

2014 72013
Land 0, 651 279% 6,651,277
Land improvements 577,271
Buildings and improvements 82,1 33,903,965
Equipment 5% 45,529,458
Construction 1n progress 7X%37.681 18.666.434
147,574,275 105,328,455

Less accumulated depreciation and amortization 316, 169.753) (42.113.116)
Total land, buildings, and equipment 101,104,522 § 63215339

In March 2013, the Hospital began construction on an $8 QOO project to improve, update, and

expand the Hospital's existing facilities with a projected ¢ etion date of August 2016. During the

years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, the % capitalized interest in the amount of
e

$1,478,152 and $1,220,079, respectively, net of interesygncome and premium amortization on the 2012
Bonds Additionally, the Hospital has accrued $3, 63 1n retainage fees, which are reported as
other long-term liabilities on the accompanying co%) ated balance sheets.

Depreciation expense for the years ended S%émber 30, 2014 and 2013 was $5,131,541 and

$4,700,874, respectively ‘ :

Note 6 - Fair Value Measurements Q

Authoritative guidance defines fa e as the price that would be received to sell an asset or paid to
transfer a liability (an exit in an orderly transaction between market participants at the
measurement date The guld%r establishes a hierarchy for inputs used in measuring fair value that
maximizes the use of ob mputs and minimizes the use of unobservable inputs by requiring the
most observable 1nput®e used when available Observable nputs are inputs that market
participants would usygn p¥icing the asset or liability developed based on market data obtained from
sources independen S%the Hospital Unobservable inputs are inputs that reflect the Hospital's
assumptions of wh rket participants would use in pricing the asset or liability developed based on
the best informatdqg¥available in the circumstances The hierarchy 1s broken down into three levels
based on the r%blllty of the inputs as follows

L& Quoted prices 1n active markets for identical assets or liabilities that are accessible at
()D\a the reporting date The fair value hierarchy gives the highest priority to Level 1
mnputs

Qevel 2 Quoted prices 1n active markets for similar assets and liabilities that are observable
for the asset or liability

-14 -



CRAIG HOSPITAL AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %

D

Note 6 - Fair Value Measurements (continued) Q

Level 3 Unobservable pricing inputs that are generally less observable frogh objective
sources, such as discounted cash flow models or valuations The 11%: nto the

determination of fair value require significant management judgment or edérmation
The financial assets and liabilities are classified based on the lowest level of input th significant to
the fair value measurement. These classifications (Levels 1, 2, and 3) are int to reflect the
observability of inputs used in the valuation of investments and are not necessaril indication of risk

or liquidity There were no changes to the Hospital's valuation techniques durm@h ear

Following 1s a description of the valuation methodologies used for assets %zured at fair value on a

recurring basis

%'ﬁ

Government obligations, equity securities, bond funds, andy funds Valued at the closing
price reported on the active market on which the securities raded

Fixed-income securities Valued based on prices curr@wallable on comparable securities
of the 1ssuer or other issuers with similar credit ratm§
Debt 1s recorded at carrying value of $39,294,756 on¢he dpnsolidated balance sheet as of September
30, 2014 The fair value of the Hospital's debt 1s bzé@n actual historical pricing based on the last

trade executed on that day and reported by Bloomberg As of September 30, 2014, the carrying amount
of long-term debt approximated fair value due to 1650at1ng rate structure

equivalents, receivables, accounts payab nd accrued expenses. These consolidated financial

Other financial instruments not measured a fgpvalue on a recurring basis include cash and cash
statement carrying amounts approximate éfélr values due to their short-term nature

The following table provides mform@ by level for assets and liabilities that are recorded at fair
value on a recurring basis at Sept 0, 2014,

\, Level | Level 2 Level 3 Total

Assets &

Obligations of the UQ

government and

government agenc‘:@ $ 2398223 $ - 8 - $ 2398223

Fixed-income s 1es - 13,016,755 - 13,016,755

Mutual funds Q¥ 51,727,203 - - 51,727,203
Total assetm@ $ 54125426 $§ 13016755 $ - $ 67142181

\

>
\
>

&Q)
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CRAIG HOSPITAL AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %

The following table provides information by level for assets and liabilities that are rea&d %t fair
value on a recurring basis at September 30, 2013 \

Note 6 - Fair Value Measurements (continued)

Level 1 Level 2 Level 3 % Total
%V
Assets
Obligations of the U S.
government and §0
government agencies $ 41,132446 $ - 5 - $ 41,132,446
Fixed-income securities - 12,662,241 v - 12,662,241
Equity securities 10,854,138 - - 10,854,138
Mutual funds 23,644,766 - A)') - 23,644,766
Bond funds 1,942 810 -\CD' - 1,942 810
Total assets $ 0 $ 90.236.401

77574160 $ 1256625%$ -

Following 1s a reconciliation of the fair value amounts @Qabove to the amounts presented 1n the

September 30,

consolidated balance sheets K

2014 2013
Total financial assets from fair value tables (D% $ 67,142,181 $§ 90,236,401
Cash equivalents 19,815,850 12,259,045
Accrued interest 6 100.478 153.586
Total o) 87.058,509 $ 102.649.032
[
Short-term 1nvestments \Q 31,293,796 $ 26,455,315
Assets limited as to use requir current hiabilities 1,222,677 2,129,569
Board-designated and don 1cted mvestments 53,271,456 73,142,250
SERP fund \' 1,270,580 921.898
Total 87.058.509 §$§ 102649032

&
&
@‘b‘

§
>

&Q)
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CRAIG HOSPITAL AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Contributions receivable consist of the following

Note 7 - Contributions Receivable (\/Q
q

Seotemb&;\

2014 2013
Due 1n less than one year 4 297 39& 4,454,140
Due 1n one to five years 10,160,708
Unamortized discount on contributions (14 (222.541)
1% 40 14,392,307
Allowance for uncollectible accounts ,3 .496) (287.846)
Total $\IN392.444 $ 14,104,461

Q9

Contributions that are due 1n less than one year but are related to‘@g term purposes are classified as
non-current assets on the accompanying consolidated balance s l@ due to the long-term nature of the
underlying purpose The effective interest rate used to ate the discount on contributions
recetvable ranged from 0 10% to 1 93%

Note 8 - Long-Term Debt é

Long-term debt consists of the following %

v

September 30,

2014 2013
Hospital - Colorado Health Facilitie @(orlty Hospital
Revenue Bonds Series 2012 Q $ 36,970,000 $ 37,595,000
Less current portion (640.,000) (625,000)
Long-term portion 36,330,000 36,970,000
Unamortized debt premlun\\ 2.324.756 2.407.292
Total $ 38654756 $§ 39377292

In December 2012, t %pltal issued Colorado Health Facilities Authority Hospital Revenue Bonds
(Craig Hospital Proje eries 2012 (the "2012 Bonds") in the amount of $37,595,000 In addition, the
bonds were 1ssued remium of $2,476,072, which 1s amortized over the life of the 2012 Bonds (30
years) The purp the bond 1ssuance 1s to fund an improvement project for the Hospital as well as
to refund the orado Health Facilities Authority Variable Rate Demand Revenue Refunding Bonds
Series 2003 & 2012 Bonds mature annually at escalating amounts through 2042 Interest rates are
defined e bond agreement and are payable on the first day of June and December of each year,
comme?%g June 1, 2013 The 2012 Bonds are redeemable at any time on or after December 1, 2022,
in whygle\dr 1n part, plus accrued interest to the redemption date The 2012 Bonds are secured by a

sechterest with respect to all gross revenues of the Hospital The 2012 Bonds Master Indenture

e s the Hospital to maintain certain covenants As of September 30, 2014, the Hospital was 1n
&mphance with all covenant requirements
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CRAIG HOSPITAL AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 8 - Long-Term Debt (continued) (\/Q
q

The Hospital's annual debt service requirements as of September 30, 2014 are as follows (\
Year Ending September 30, \

2015 $ 640,000 %\‘

2016 665,0%
2017 690

2018 7;@@
2019 )00

Thereafter 33) yO .000

$§' } 365i 970,000
Note 9 - Benefit Plans Q:

Total

The Hospital has a defined contribution retirement plan 'Plan"), which 1s administered by a
designated insurance company and includes a group of ent alternatives from which employees
may choose Contributions are made on behalf of ququ{e employees eligible for benefits at varying
levels based on years of service to the Hospital Con ions may also include a matching amount up
to 4% of qualified voluntary employee contributions “mployer basic and matching contributions vest
at 20% per year for prior service commenci ith the employee's completion of two years of
employment The Hospital's contributions to t an were approximately $2,517,000 and $2,570,000
for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 20 3, respectively

In addition, the Hospital established a Se
for the exclusive benefit of certain e
defined in the SERP agreements, in

457(f) supplemental executive retirement plan ("SERP")
ives Certain forfeiture provisions apply to the SERP, as
funds would revert back to the Hospital The balance of the
SERP fund as of September 30,.2 nd 2013 1s $1,270,580 and $921,898, respectively The balance
of the related liability 1s $1,5 5& nd $1,161,898 for the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively The differenc $240,000 and $240,000 as of September 30, 2014 and 2013,
respectively, represents t %&leutlons approved by the Board of Directors to be paid to the SERP 1n
the year following eacl\%t e respective years noted above Total contributions to the SERP fund
were approximately 0,000 for each of the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively
In March 2011, two %’accounts were created at Great West Life and Annuity Insurance Company,
$130,000 was plag a 457(f) Mutual Choice Plan, and $110,000 was placed in a Company Owned
Life Insurance (" [") account The Hospital funded these two accounts in the same manner 1n 2013
and 2014 Tl@ accounts were created to replace the original 457(f) that was established prior to
2011 Thg on&nal 457(f) still maintains a balance but no longer receives additional contributions

Y
')Q\'(b)
&Q)
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CRAIG HOSPITAL AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %

D

Note 9 - Benefit Plans (continued) Q

The Hospital has a post-employment medical and prescription drug benefit plan ("PERP") #yailgble to
eligible retired employees who meet defined service requirements The PERP is being g:%d out for
current and future participants through 2015, and all benefits cease by December 31, 2015 he PERP
1s unfunded. The accumulated post-retirement benefit obligation related to the PERP‘GQtﬁled $74,624
and $176,009 as of September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively The benefit o tion has been
calculated using a discount rate of 2 5%, with assumed 10 0% annual increases 1 ‘ﬁealth care cost
trend rates Benefits paid to PERP beneficiaries totaled approximately $147,0 $104,000 during
the years ended September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively Yé

Note 10 - Grants and Contracts o

The Hospital has entered into agreements with various agenc1e@e U.S. government and other
organizations to perform research and related projects The gra d contracts are subject to various
expense restrictions and are subject to audit to determine co@mce with the agreements Indirect
costs are recovered based upon provisional rates Adjustm reflect actual indirect costs are made
through the adjustment of future indirect cost rates Ma%gnt believes that any costs questioned 1n
audits and future indirect cost adjustments will Gt material 1n relation to the Hospital's
accompanying consolidated financial statements Acé&ngly, no allowances have been established

Note 11 - Commitments and Contingencies (D%

The health care industry 1s subject to n us laws and regulations of federal, state, and local
governments Compliance with these la d regulations, specifically those relating to the Medicare
and Medicaid programs, can be sub em overnment review and interpretation as well as regulatory
actions unknown and unasserted at t*ﬂx e Recently, federal government activity has increased with
respect to investigations and alle s concerning possible violations by health care providers of
regulations, which could resulg’ &nposmon of significant fines and penalties as well as significant
repayments of previously bll@d collected revenues from patient services Management believes
that the Hospaital 1s 1n substq& compliance with current laws and regulations

policy The policy pr es coverage up to specified policy limits for claims filed within the period of
the policy term Hospital, based upon information provided by its insurance carrier, has
determined that tb‘v timated liability for potential losses incurred but not reported at September 30,
2014 1s not ma@a to the accompanying consolidated financial statements

The Hospital ma1nta1Es pMfessional liability nsurance through a claims-made commercial insurance

The Hosplteﬁsas entered into contracts for the design and construction of an improvement project it is
currently&@&ertakmg As of September 30, 2014, the Hospital has entered into contracts totaling

approxi6taely $78,071,000 for its improvement and expansion project over its existing facilities The
total et of this project 1s $86,500,000, and the Hospital has icurred approximately $47,161,000
a ,067,000 1n related costs through September 30, 2014 and 2013, respectively

S
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CRAIG HOSPITAL AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %

Note 11 - Commitments and Contingencies (continued) (\/Q

Self-Funded Benefit Plan (\ o

The Hospital provides self-funded contributory medical and dental coverage to eligibleNymployees
The coverage was previously provided through the Craig Hospital Health Benefit Trus)%]e "Trust"), a
voluntary employee beneficiary association The Trust was dissolved effective D ber 31, 2009,
and all coverage was assumed by the Hospital The Hospital, as well as the part ing employees,
make contributions to fund the benefits provided under this plan As of Septe , 2014 and 2013,
the estimated liability for claims incurred but not reported was $700,000 and& 7000, respectively,
and 1s included 1n accounts payable and accrued expenses in the accompanEq consolidated financial
statements. The insurance premiums collected by the Hospital are scheduled for increases, as
necessary, in order to fund reserves to maximum lability and prowdenfunding for all estimated

incurred but not reported claims (b

Note 12 - Functional Expenses Q

The Hospital provides a wide range of treatment and rek@lon services for spinal, brain, and other
nerve-related injuries to patients from Colorado and @herstates as well as research and educational
activities for the community Expenses related to prob these services are as follows

% For the Years Ended
(D September 30,
2014 2013

Health care services & > $ 53,575,314 $§ 51,684,250
General and administration (D 20,656,146 19,008,052
Depreciation, amortization, 1nte1t& d provision for bad debts 5,175,816 4,827,398

Foundation expenditures & 3.868.118 3.288.585
[ ]
Total \ $ 83275394 $ 78808285

Note 13 - Investments ﬁowments

The Hospital's endo ts consist of various funds established for a variety of purposes, including
supporting graduat nsuring the future excellence of Craig Hospital, and general purposes The
endowments 1ncl both donor-restricted endowment funds and funds designated by the Board of
Directors to fyfxtion as endowments As required by GAAP, net assets associated with endowment
funds, 1nc.luﬂmg unds designated by the Board of Directors to function as endowments, are classified
and repo ased on the existence or absence of donor-imposed restrictions

o
N
<&

-20 -



CRAIG HOSPITAL AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements %

Note 13 - Investments in Endowments (continued) (\/Q

The Hospital classifies the portion of a donor-restricted endowment that 1s perpetual yAnagure as
permanently restricted net assets The remaining portion of accumulations to d frxstrlcted
endowment funds that 1s not classified in permanently restricted net assets 1s classified asictated by
the donor or, 1n absence of donor stipulation, as temporarily restricted net assets un \ngse amounts
are appropriated for expenditure by the Hospital in a manner consistent with the st d of prudence
prescribed by the Colorado Uniform Prudent Management of Institutional Funds

The Hospital has adopted investment and spending policies for endowmen@ws s that attempt to
provide a predictable stream of funding to programs supported by its en ents while seeking to
maintain the purchasing power of endowment assets

The Finance Commuttee of the Foundation 1s responsible for selectin Fsset mix and managers for
the endowments of the Foundation The target asset allocation 1 1 equities with the remaining
balance in fixed income instruments

The Board of Directors approves distributions from the fu anated by the Board of Directors to
function as endowments through the annual budget proces xpenditures from the donor-restricted
endowment funds are controlled by the Hospital's Bg f Directors consistent with the donors'

intents K

During 2013, the Board of Directors approved Q release of $271,021 of Board-designated
endowment funds

Endowment net asset composition by type of ncgs of September 30, 2014

& Temporarily Permanently
Unékted Restricted Restricted Total
Donor-restricted ¢

D

endowment funds % - 3 597,206 $ 2,492,167 $ 3.089.373
[ J

Total funds \
Endowment net asset co@mn by type of fund as of September 30, 2013
t Temporarily Permanently
Unrestricted Restricted Restricted Total

Donor-restricted 'ZQ

- $ 597206 $ 2,492,167 $ 3.089.373

endowment fun $ - 3 495.898 § 2.484.167 $ 2.980.065
Total fun.ds,A@ $ - % 495.898 §$ 2,484,167 $ 2,980,065

\
>
\
>

&Q)
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CRAIG HOSPITAL AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Consolidated Financial Statements

Note 13 - Investments in Endowments (continued)

Changes 1n endowment net assets for the fiscal year ended September 30, 2014

Temporarily
Restricted

Permanently

Unrestricted Restricted

“
N
AN

Total

Endowment assets,

N
495,898 $ 2,484,1@% 2,980,065

beginning of year $ - 3

Investment income and gains - 166,189 166,189
Contributions - - 8,000
Distributions - (33,614) Yy - (33,614)
Transfers - (31.267) - (31.267)
Endowment assets, end of year $ - % 297,206 D 492167 3,089,373
Changes 1n endowment net assets for the fiscal year ended Septembﬂo, 2013

Tempor: Q Permanently
Unrestricted Rest Restricted Total

Endowment assets, ?

beginning of year $ 271,021 $ 7,160 $ 1,062,80 1,610,984
Investment income and gains - Q 249411 - 249411
Contributions - - 1,421,364 1,421,364
Distributions 9 (51s98) - (31,898)
Transfers (271 ,O2w 1,225 - (269.796)
Endowment assets, end of year $ $ 495898 $ 2,484,167 2.980.065
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER \c,j
FINANCIAL REPORTING AND ON COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTE
BASED ON AN AUDIT OF FINANCIAL STATEMENTS PERFORMED m,
ACCORDANCE WITH GOVERNMENT AUDITING STANDARD
)

Board of Directors \

Craig Hospital and Affiliates §

Englewood, Colorado

We have audited, in accordance with the auditing standards generally ted in the United States of
America and the standards applicable to financial audits contained 1n :;Zj’ernmenrAua’mng Standards,
1ssued by the Comptroller General of the United States, the conso da;’ed financial statements of Craig
Hospital and Affiliates (the "Hospital"), which are comprised o consolidated balance sheets as of
September 30, 2014 and 2013, and the related consohdated@'t\ nts of operations, changes in net
assets, and cash flows for the years then ended, and the d notes to the consolidated financial
statements, and have 1ssued our report thereon dated Aug@ 2015

INTERNAL CONTROL OVER FINANCIAL R@TNG

In planning and performing our audit of the cnﬁi)lldated financial statements, we considered the
Hospital's internal control over financial rePQrtidg ("internal control") to determine the audit
procedures that are appropriate in the circu ces for the purpose of expressing our opinion on the
financial statements, but not for the puxr bof expressing an opinton on the effectiveness of the
Hospital's internal control Accordinglyg do not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the

Hospital's internal control o\

A deficiency in mternal control @ts when the design or operation of a control does not allow
management or employees, 1 ormal course of performing their assigned functions, to prevent, or
detect and correct, misstate ts on a timely basis A material weakness 1s a deficiency, or
combination of deficienct n internal control such that there 1s a reasonable possibility that a
material misstatement Q entity's financial statements will not be prevented, or detected and
corrected, on a timely A significant deficiency 1s a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in

internal control that 1s 1&s severe than a material weakness yet important enough to merit attention by
those charged w1tl: @ernance

S
X
S

&Q)
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Board of Directors
Craig Hospital and Affiliates

“

Our consideration of internal control was for the limited purpose described 1n the first paragraph o@
section and was not designed to identify all deficiencies 1n internal control that might be emal
weaknesses or significant deficiencies, therefore, material weaknesses or significant deflclencmay
exist that were not identified Given these limitations, during our audit, we did not tidy any
deficiencies 1n internal control that we consider to be material weaknesses. Howeger, Ymaterial
weaknesses may exist that have not been identified We did identify certain deflclenckn internal
control, described 1n the accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs th consider to
be significant deficiencies

COMPLIANCE AND OTHER MATTERS §0

As part of obtaining reasonable assurance about whether the Hospital's flgﬂlal statements are free
from material misstatement, we performed tests of its compliance with certain provisions of laws,
regulations, contracts, and grant agreements, non-compliance with A could have a direct and
material effect on the determination of financial statement amoun er, providing an opinion on
compliance with those provisions was not an objective of our s, and, accordingly, we do not

express such an opinion The results of our tests disclosed no ances of non-compliance or other
matters that are required to be reported under Government m@ Standards

CRAIG HOSPITAL AND AFFILIATES' RESPONS%( FINDINGS

The Hospital's response to the findings identified r audit are described in the accompanying
schedule of findings and questioned costs The Haspital's response was not subjected to the auditing
procedures applied in the audit of the financial s ents, accordingly, we express no opinion on it

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT A)
The purpose of this report 1s intended s to describe the scope of our testing of internal control and
compliance and the results of that T and not to provide an opinion on the effectiveness of the

entity's internal control or on co ce This report 1s an integral part of an audit performed in
accordance with Government o ng Standards in considering the entity's internal control and
compliance Accordingly, thls unication 1s not suitable for any other purpose

L EKS&HLLLP
August 31, 2015 Q:
Denver, C olorado(b

4@
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INDEPENDENT AUDITORS' REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR Q
EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PROGRAM AND REPORT ON
INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE (\
o

X
Board of Directors %
N

Craig Hospital and Affiliates
Englewood, Colorado QO

REPORT ON COMPLIANCE FOR EACH MAJOR FEDERAL PRO)OGRAM

We have audited Craig Hospital and Affiliates' (the "Hospi %ompllance with the types of

compliance requirements described in the OMB Circular mpliance Supplement that could
have a direct and material effect on each of the Hospital's m federal programs for the year ended
September 30, 2014 The Hospital's major federal progra e 1dentified in the summary of auditors'

results section of the accompanying schedule of findings @ questioned costs

Management's Responsibility

Management 1s responsible for compliance w1t®requlrements of laws, regulations, contracts, and
grants applicable to 1ts federal programs (b
. \Q’
[ ]

Our responsibility 1s to express a% ion on compliance for each of the Hospital's major federal

Auditors' Responsibility

programs based on our audit of th s of compliance requirements referred to above We conducted
our audit of compliance 1n ac e with auditing standards generally accepted 1n the United States
of America, the standards a@e to financial audits contained in Government Auditing Standards,
1ssued by the Comptrolle®™general of the United States, and OMB Circular A-133, Audits of States,
Local Governments, and rofit Organizations Those standards and OMB Circular A-133 require
that we plan and perfo e audit to obtain reasonable assurance about whether non-compliance with
the types of compliancegBquirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on a

major federal pro occurred An audit includes examining, on a test basis, evidence about the
Hospaital's comp e with those requirements and performing such other procedures as we considered
necessary in t cumstances

We belie ;t our audit provides a reasonable basis for our opinion on compliance for each major
federal ram  However, our audit does not provide a legal determination of the Hospital's

co& e

-26 -



Board of Directors
Craig Hospital and Affiliates

Opinion on Each Major Federal Award ®

In our opinion, the Hospital complied, in all material respects, with the types of compliWnce
requirements referred to above that could have a direct and material effect on each of its nﬁ)&r #cderal
programs for the year ended September 30, 2014, \

REPORT ON INTERNAL CONTROL OVER COMPLIANCE %\a

Management of the Hospital 1s responsible for establishing and maintaining effi thernal control
over compliance with the types of compliance requirements referred to ab. In planning and
performing our audit of compliance, we considered the Hospital's interngl cd#rol over compliance
with the types of requirements that could have a direct and material e?%t"on each major federal
program to determine the auditing procedures that are appropriate in the circumstances for the purpose
of expressing an opinion on compliance for each major federal progggnPand to test and report on
internal control over compliance 1n accordance with OMB Circulgr , but not for the purpose of
expressing an opinion on the effectiveness of internal control ov mpliance Accordingly, we do
not express an opinion on the effectiveness of the Hospital's 1nte@control over compliance

A deficiency 1n internal control over compliance exists wh e design or operation of a control over
compliance does not allow management or employegs, the normal course of performing their
assigned functions, to prevent, or detect and corre%on-comphance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program on a timely bas material weakness 1n internal control over
compliance 1s a deficiency, or combination of deficiencies, in internal control over compliance such
that there 1s a reasonable possibility that %al non-compliance with a type of compliance
requirement of a federal program will not be Fmted, or detected and corrected, on a timely basis A
significant deficiency 1n internal control A%r compliance 1s a deficiency, or a combination of

deficiencies, in internal control over co n€e with a type of compliance requirement of a federal
program that 1s less severe than a mate eakness 1n internal control over compliance yet important
enough to merit attention by those ch with governance

Our consideration of internal ce ﬂ&/er compliance was for the limited purpose described 1n the first
paragraph of this section an(f\? not designed to identify all deficiencies in internal control over
compliance that might be @ erial weaknesses or significant deficiencies, therefore, material
weaknesses or signific ciencies may exist that were not identified We did not identify any
deficiencies in interngl codgol over compliance that we consider to be material weaknesses However,
we 1dentified certai eficiencies 1 internal control over compliance, as described in the
accompanying sch of findings and questioned costs as items 2014-001 and 2014-002, that we
consider to be sig nt deficiencies

The Hospital Q)sponse to the internal control over complance findings 1dentified in our audit are
described® & accompanying schedule of findings and questioned costs The Hospital's response was
not subj %to the auditing procedures applied in the audit of compliance, accordingly, we express no

opmlq% he response

<&
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Board of Directors
Craig Hospital and Affiliates

“

PURPOSE OF THIS REPORT ®

The purpose of this report on internal control over compliance 1s solely to describe the scopercy)ur
testing of internal control over compliance and the results of that testing based on the reqilments of
OMB Circular A-133. Accordingly, this report 1s not suitable for any other purpose. \

X
Q%KS&H LLLP

August 31, 2015
Denver, Colorado §0
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CRAIG HOSPITAL AND AFFILIATES

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
For the Year Ended September 30, 2014

Section I - Summary of Auditors' Results

Fmancial Statements (\

Ty pe of auditors' report 1ssued - Unmodified \
Internal control oy er financial reporting. c),\l
. Material weakness(es) 1dentified? [ Yes ¥ No
o Significant deficiencies 1dentified” [ Yes 0 ¥ None reported
Non-compliance material to financial statements noted”? r YCSYV W No
Federal Awards "
Internal control over major programs A)
. Material weakness(es) 1dentified” bl_ Yes % No
. Significant deficiencies 1dentified” Q ® Yes [ None reported
Ts pe of auditors' report 1ssued on compliance for major progr, nmodified

Any audit findings disclosed that are required to be reporteg%

accordance with Section 310(a) of OMB Circular A-133"Q X Yes [ No
Identification of major programs %
Program _ SQY CFDA#
Research and Development Cluster A)
U.S. Department of Education
National Data and Statistical Cente he Traumatic Bram Injury
Model Sy stems . 84 133A
Research and Demonstration \ 84 133A
Rocky Mountain Regional S Cord Injury Sy stem 84 133N
U.S. Department of Defene\l\
Treatment of Social Cor nce in Military Veterans. Service
Members. and Cny 1hzﬁ th Traumatic Bramn Injury 12 420
Family Caregiver terans with Spinal Cord Injury 12 420

Dollar threshold used toMegtinguish between tv pe A and B programs $300.000
Auditee qualified asQn-rlsk auditee” [ Yes X No

v

Section 1I - PA@ial Statement Findings

None®

N
')Q\'(b)
&Q)
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CRAIG HOSPITAL AND AFFILIATES
Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2014

Section III - Federal Award Findings and Questioned Costs

q
No. 2014-001: Preparation of Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards <\
National Institute of Health - Anger Self-Management 1n Post-Acute Traumatic % Injury. A

Vv

Multi-Center Clinic, CFDA #93 865, and U S Department of Education - Multice aluation of
Memory Remediation After Traumatic Brain Injury with Donepezil, CFDA #84

Criteria Federal regulations, under OMB Circular A-133 Subpa@ ection 300, require
that grantees maintain internal control necessary entify and include all
federal awards on the schedule of expenditures federal awards 1n the
appropriate period L)

Condition. The schedule of expenditures of federal &‘s improperly excluded federal

pass-through grants (CFDA #93 865 and% 3A)

Context Improper exclusion of $244,832 ecipient awards 1n the schedule of
expenditures of federal awards

Questioned Costs None noted Q
Effect Without proper process d controls to determine the completeness and
accuracy of the schedul expenditures of federal awards, the Hospital risks

non-compliance w1th@>u1rements and potentially loss of funding

Cause The Hospital wa;bnable to timely and accurately develop controls to meet
requlrement&f@complete and accurate schedule of expenditures of federal

D

awards
[ ]
Recommendation The Hbﬂ%{&&Should obtain the appropriate training regarding federal funding
reququ ts and continue to improve processes and controls as it relates to new
g &o tained All new grants should be forwarded to the accounting
d%tment and included on the schedule of expenditures of federal awards

Management View Qe Hospital will continue to improve its internal communication regarding new

and Planned awards and work to include a proper review of the annual schedule of
Corrective ACthgD expenditures of federal awards

RN\
\)
qe)
\)
QO

&Q)
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CRAIG HOSPITAL AND AFFILIATES

Schedule of Findings and Questioned Costs
Year Ended September 30, 2014

No. 2014-02: Timely and Accurate Reporting (\/
q
National Institute of Health - Anger Self-Management in Post-Acute Traumatic Bra (I%er. A

Multi-Center Clinic, CFDA #93 865, and U S Department of Education - Multlcenter EvaMation of
Memory Remediation After Traumatic Brain Injury with Donepezil, CFDA #84 133%

Criteria. Federal regulations, under OMB Circular A-133 Subpart 1on 300, require
that recipients of federal awards maintain internal cont federal programs
that provide reasonable assurance that the audltee anaging the federal

awards 1n compliance with laws, regulations, and tl?ovmons of contracts or
grant agreements that could have a material effedt on each of its federal

programs : L)

Condition. The Hospital had two reports to the granto@' were not properly reviewed or
submitted timely Q

Context The lack of a sufficient internal co nvironment resulted in late filings of

annual reports with reporting err

Questioned Costs None noted Q

Effect Without sufficient contr: %1 place to review the reports, the Hospital risks
filing late information requesting retmbursement for funds 1n excess of
allowable amounts

Cause The Hospital was(&)le to timely and accurately develop controls to meet the
required repor etrics and 1dentify federal program requirements

Recommendation The Hogp ould establish controls around the reporting process to ensure
the repbx e accurate, timely, and compliant with all requirements

Management Views T, %spltal will work to develop processes and controls that promote accurate
and Planned amtimely reporting with appropriate approval

Corrective Actions ‘b

Section 1V - Prior@Findings and Questioned Costs

None

Q
')Q\'(b)
&Q)
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CRAIG HOSPITAL AND AFFILIATES

Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards %
For the Year Ended September 30, 2014 \
Federal Grantor/Pass-Through CFDA Feder
Grantor/Program or Cluster Title Number Eﬂ ndefures
Research and Development Cluster \

U.S. Department of Education %\‘
Direct Program 0
National Data and Statistical Center for the Traumatic Brain QO
% i

Injury Model Systems 84 1,019,255
Research and Demonstration SZN?A 415,718
Rocky Mountain Regional Spinal Cord Injury System 84 MB3N 457,220

Pass-Through Program
Passed through Memorial Hermann Health System @4 133A 89,849
Total U.S. Department of Education 1.982.042
U.S. Department of Defense Q
Direct Program Q
Treatment of Social Competence in Military Veter@
Service Members, and Civilians with TraumatigBrahy Injury 12 420 489,692
Family Caregivers for Veterans with Spinal Co@wry 12 420 81.835
Total U.S. Department of Defense 571,527
National Institute of Health
Pass-Through Program
Passed through Albert Einstein Healt Network 93 865 154,983

e ———

Total federal awards (b $ 2.708.552
>

& See notes to schedule of expenditures of federal awards
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CRAIG HOSPITAL AND AFFILIATES

Notes to Schedule of Expenditures of Federal Awards %
For the Year Ended September 30, 2014 \

Note 1 - Basis of Accounting (\/

The accompanying schedule of expenditures of federal awards includes the federal gr: &tl\'}lty of
Craig Hospital and Affiliates (the "Hospital") and 1s presented on the accrual basis of ac?c&mtmg The
information 1n this schedule 1s presented 1n accordance with the requirements of OMB‘Qgcular A-133,
Audits of States, Local Governments, and Non-Profit Organizations

Note 2 - Subrecipients Q C

The Hospital subawards federal grants to subrecipients For the year endegeptember 30, 2014, the
following amounts, by federal program, were provided to subre01p§nu, and are included in the

expenditures reported on the schedule of expenditures of federal awa

Program Title and CFDA Number b Amount

Research and Development Cluster, Various Programs, F@Q
#84 133A/84 133G/84 133N $ 316,768
Anger Self-Management in Post-Acute Traumatic Ei jury

$

A Multi-Center Clinic, CFDA #93 865 154,983
Treatment of Social Competence in Military Vete@s,

Service Members, and Civilians with Traumatic Brain

Injury and Family Caregivers for Veterans \{?Spmal

Cord Injury Programs, CFDA #12 420 318.217
Total federal awards provided to subre %ts $ 789,968

o
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